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We put you first Arid kcep you ahead



ABOUT THE COVER
FMC Technologies generated record revenues of

$4.6 billion in 2008 strengthening our position as the

leading global provider of technology solutions and

services to the oil and gas industry Supported by

portfolio of products and services that are as diverse

as our 9800 worldwide employees we continued

to advance the capabilities and possibilities of oil

production through the design and manufacture of

sophisticated and value-added technologies

Our people and our technologies continued to set the

standard for reliability efficiency and performance in

2008 This included the manufacture of equipment

for number of global projects including subsea

separation and processing systems for Totals Pazflor

field featured on the front cover Other technology

investments ranged from
light

well intervention

systems to our patented liquid natural gas offloading

arms as well as the design and delivery of our leading

pumps wellheads swivel joints and meters

Named by FORTUNE Magazine as Americas Most

Admired Oil and Gas Equipment Service Company

in three of the last four years FMC Technologies is

recognized as performance-based company that

delivers the highest level of quality integrity and

reliability
in everything we do We understand our

customers businesses and help them overcome their

most difficult operational challenges By developing

the technologies and service solutions they require to

succeed we will continue to put our customers first

And keep them ahead
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We maintain due

to our innovative sophisticated technoogy soutions

For thc sev nth straight ye sr FM Technologic

achieved record results Revenue increased

25 percent to hilhon led by the growth of

our subsea systems business and
carnmgs per

share born continuing operations of $2 were up

39 percent compared to 2007 hse and our other

financial results undersc ore he nvestments we

hays made our people facilities and technology

and our ability to develop and maintain strong

customsr rd oinnships and lnng term alhan es

Many of our new technologies errable more effk ient

and cost effective production of oil arid gis that will

JIow F-MC to continue to support ou customers

increasing challenges of deepwater dew lopmerrts

completed the spin off of Foodlech and Au port

Systems now BT Corporation allowing us to be

completely fen used on our energy businesses The

spin oft was implemented through tax free

dividend to all FMC shareholders

Global sub ea revenue ieached bilhon in 2508

and during the year we received orders for total

of E22 new subsea production trees for 38 projects

from 22 different customers these awards came

from all major olfs sore basins around the world

the GuV of Mexico the North Sea Brat West

Afnca arid thc Far Cast

In the Gulf of Mexico hells Perdido development

wa the second deployment of FM subsea

separation technologies and the first use of subsea

sepsrat ion ri this region In adchtion we set new

o1ld suosea uripletion dupth ceo en 36 fret

2850 meters with Pt rclido surpassing our

previously established record set in 200/ with

Anadarko Independence Hub project it 8995 feet

2/40 rrleters

Cu \5iu

ir

Subsed Prod ction Wate Depth RecoidPets Kinrrear
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We saw the successful progression of scveral

previously awarded projects during the year

Spw fe ally we began work on our largest subsea

order ever the $980 million Pa for proj Ct

operated offshore Angola by Total This project is

significant due to its complexity as well as

with thrcc subsea separation systems in addition

to 49 subsea trces

Anothur impurtant dnveluprnenr stas the signing
nf

several new sti ategic mulE year alliance agreements

with our customers Anadarko Petroleum Devon

Energy LLOG Exploration anc Noble Energy these

alliances benefit both FMC and our customeis by

providing framework for budgeting forecirtir

procurement and delivery thus maki ig project

cxecution more eflicient We are also proud of 00

continued long tcrm relationship with customers

including Pp ohevrorr NP ooriocoPfriliips Err

Hess Nexen Pctro Canada Petrobras Shell

StitorlHydro total and Woodside Energy

To position tfre company for futurt growth we

purchaser percent interest in Sch 11mg

Robotics LC manufacturer 0f remotely operated

vehicles ROV5 riranipulator systems and other

high technology equipment used in subsea oil and

gas exploratro As more subsea systems such as

subsea processing so utiorrs are installed on the

ocean loor envision an increased usc of ROVs

during the life of the subsea field including the

initial installation naintrrance and monitoring of

equipment on the seabed

lo rerniain technology eadcm and the supplier of

cfrorce to our customers it essential that we

continually devetop new innovativ equipment

ervices and solutions for our ustorners MC

currently has more than fO new subsea technologies

in different stages of development that will benefit

our cu tomers Several will be launched in 2009

While subsea ys ems our largest md fastcst

growing business frad another outstanding year the

other husiriesss in our energy port folio also

delivered solid perorrnances Our surfac wcllhead

business frad record growth with significant

ncr easc in orders revenue arid prc frtabr
rty

Energy 3rocessing comprised ol our fluid control

loading systerrrs iicascirenient solutions and

later ial handling solutions businesses set record

results fnr everiut and nrofitahilitv as II Notably

Samsung arid Flex awarded our biding

systems business contract for offshore liquefied

natural ga offloadirig lhm contract is tfre

largest received rn thr history of our loading

systems ismness In addrt on our rrrateriar handling

solutions business is selec ted to dc sign and

supply the handling systerris for the Prairie State

Energy Dan pus Prolect in Illinois tfrc largest

ual fir ncr power guns ratiur pl cer

construction in the United States

LU

uJ

LU

LU

blimp Rob tics DV read to be mini hcd into

hr wter



FMC Technologies has longstanding history of

sale operation that
promotes emp oyee health and

environmental stewardship We contrnurd that

outstandmg Health Safety and Envuonrrrental HSf
performance 2008

two of the mcdsurements we use to assess our HSL

urogiess are Recordable and Lost Workday Incident

rates both cakulated per evriy aoo00o hours

worked The srnaker the number the better our

performance Last year our Recordable ncident

Rate was 57 our Lost Workday Incident Rate was

o6 far surpassing the industry benchmarks of the

top performurg oil and gas service companies By

comparison the companies experienced rate of

for recordable incidents and 23 for lost

workday incidents

We etuIhe new met fu gb risk activities

in an effort to prevent potential injuries including

those involving pressure testing Equipment size

and pressures continue increase and new

technologies are being developed to allow

customers to produce in even more demanding

operating environrients It is thercfore both

practical and
necessary to establish more

comprehensive pressure testing procedures that

can improve safety for our employees customers

arid the environments in which they operate

10141
ITl

Mc rednooge
caa 5evi

HSE excellence is deeply embedded in our corporate

culture and has been our operating model for

decades It is one of oui Core Values along with

IntEgrity Innovation Collaboration Respect and

Accountability

formally introduced these Core Values to ill

employees in the fourth cjuarter of 2008 In this

yerrs innual iepo have also dedicated .ectiuri

introducing our values to every shareholder Our

Core Values epreserrt what FMC expccts of each

employee They also serve as promise of what our

employees customer shareholders communities

and suppliers can expect from FMC Quite simply

they are the foundation for how we will conduct

business They will serve as guide for our actions

and decisions
avery day arid will distinguish the

LMC Technologies brand worldwide This includes

plu-dge to fin stiunB our gui ate cituzemi iii all aspen is

of our business

Eve day our employees around the world are

making lasting impact on the communities in

which they live and work Beyond the commitment

of daily work activities they are reaching out to

tfrerr schools neighbors and civic organizations

providing needed services and enriching the lives

of those around thcrnr

Secordable Workday Incident Rains icr oo xo Flours Worked

Ii dc ii dpi Loll Wi kd
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Since becoming CEO have encouraged our

employees to give their time and support to any of

the worthy causes for which they are passionate

about am very impressed with our global

response as employees engaged in numerous

charity and outreach programs including support

of local education for school-aged children

sponsorship of adult literacy programs fundraising

for the benefit of orphanages and the effort to

provide guide dogs for the blind

While 2008 was an outstanding year we must

continually strive for improvements in every aspect

of our business Establishing standard global

processes utilizing best practices and providing

superb project execution are essential components

to future growth Success in these areas will

improve quality and on-time delivery and increase

profitability

Today we maintain strong competitive advantage

because of our innovative and sophisticated

technological solutions As we look to 2009 and

beyond it is imperative that we build upon this

achievement in every aspect of our business

embedding quality culture throughout FMC that

mirrors our industry-leading safety performance

It is equally important to ensure that we eliminate

inefficiencies from our processes and that we

continue to deliver superior products and services

on time to our customers

During 2008 we made number of key

management appointments These included

the promotion of Jay Nutt as Controller

of the company and the appointment of

Jeffrey Beyersdorfer as Treasurer In addition

in accordance with our previously announced

succession plan Joseph Netherland after

35 years
retired from FMC Technologies

His leadership and dedication will be missed by

those who worked with him The Board of Directors

subsequently appointed me Chairman of FMC

Technologies position now hold in addition to

my duties as President and Chief Executive Officer

FMC was able to generate record results by

responding to customer needs and recognizing the

trends of our industry Our sound strategies and

financial discipline resulted in competitive

advantages and solidified our leadership position in

all key markets in which we participate We must

continue to manage our businesses with

dedication to growth sound financial performance

and technology improvement and commitment to

our customers to deliver quality in all aspects of

our work

Like every year 2009 will offer new and unique

challenges and opportunities By maintaining

consistent focus on flawless execution continuing

to invest in the development of innovative

technologies and ensuring we possess the most

talented workforce in the industry we will remain

positioned to succeed even in todays uncertain

business climate

Peter Kinnear

Chairman President and CEO

FMC Technologies Inc
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the guidng principes for our busness

aoo8 was another str ong and prof taMe year for

FMC Technologies Operating proht from

contir
uirrg operations roic to So6 rnilhorr

pe cent inc rease md inc ome from continuing

operations increased to $3 milhon percent

mprovement over the prior year tar rings pci share

0T co itinuing operations ros 39 perc it to

$2.7 while after tax return on investment

nereased to 30 rercent it the end of 20 total

court any hacklot good indicator of fut ire

revenue stocd at billion

fundamental remson fc the ucc of MC lies

in our capahihty to generate operating cash fIery

which vas .6 rilliorr rrr eoo8 MC ability

generate positive easl flow is unction of the

intrinsic profitahil ty of ou pr
odi cts and rvic

aid the limit amount of xed irid worcirig apital

cdi of or husinc units Since our businesses do

not equire large arrro rrrt of ca tal to func tiurr

they are cape ble ut generating excess sfr dow in

most economic rrrironments As sult we

Villi ii ir ra in II

ecutivc cc esrdent aid tO

reduce our dependency on external credit markets

illowing managemrrent to direct the cash into new

profitable investments

To ensure ou businesses rerro in profitable we

we proce ses in place that monitor and assess the

ongoing profitability arrd capital requiremrrents of

each operating unit We xamine trends including

profitability working capital receivables inventory

custorrrer advances arid oayables due to suppliers

md capital pending Evaluating these arid other

performance metrics dllows us to srrticipate

challenges arid react quickly and effectively when

opportunities fre coming year will likely test

the processes given the expected deelrne in

alfie Id ctivrty

cE5
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High returns on capital ridicate that business is MC is financially sound company and is poised

well managed and possesses advantages over its to urvive this challenging economic environment

competition Lmploying more capital at higher ates As always our goals are to further strengthen our

of return creates shareholder value During 2008 we ndustry leadership position become an even

used our excess cash to stronger company and generate excess free rash

flow resulting in an increase in shareholder value

Invest approximately $i6 milhon in capital We bchev we have the strategies discipline and
EL

expenditues to sustain our current businesses
people in place to continue to achieve those goals

and fund the organic growth of new

businesses such as well intervention systems

and investments in tecf nology developments

Acquire partial ownership of new businesses William Schumann Ill

such as Schilling Robotics to bri
ig

Executive Vice President and CFO

additional growth opportunities Tec.hncilogies Inc

Repurchase million shares of stock to return

capital to shareholders

As you review our financial staternencs you
will

see that ML has very strong balance sheet We

cuirently have approximately $495 million in dcbt

which is very
small figure for company of our

size Our cash level at year end of $340 million

rcsulte in net debt position of million at

December 31 2008 Our $6oo million revolving

credit facility has unused capacity of $214 million

which provides us with suffic ienit liquidity

Morecwer we began 0209 by adding another credit

facility
of $f5o million to provide us with added

flexibilty Due to our sound balance sheet is

in very strong position to invest in future growth

opportunities

as ii iiII
-xc 002 .Y 20 oc cco/
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Our subsea systms busrness contrrrued tc caprtahze

on the growmg demand for drepwater or and gas

production wrth our ubsea separatron hoostrng

arid processing systems We provrde ths technology

to mcii se or recovery it hrownfield projects and

to develoo grcenIreld projer ts that nay otherwrse

be ronsrdered economically unvrahle or inaccessrble

Our fourrh si hsea
separatron award total azflor

project located offshore Angola will utrlize three

subsea separation systems and wrll mark the Irrst

use of thr technology offshore WeV Africa

-t he Pazflor project remarns on schedule and on

budget wrth equrpment deliver rex scheduled to

begi rn 2oc9

the strength of our tecfrnologres rsulted rn the

announcement of several subsea projects durrng the

yEar rncludrng awards from Petrobras to support

the Roncador arid Eambau fields offshore Brazrl

from Shell for the deepwater Gumusu Kakap

project offshore East Malaysra and from

StatoilHydro to supfrort tlrerr Asgard Herdrun

Norne froll and Yttergryta projects the North

Sea Our North Sea awards also rncluded five year

agreemi
nt with onm oPhillips to support the

kofisk field ss well as agriements to manuFacture

systems for Venture Productron pk

We continued to wo -k with She on two full freld

developments Perdrdo rn the Gulf of Mexico arid

BC so in the Campos Basrn offshore Brazrl that

wrIl utrlize subsea separatronr and hoostrrrg

Fec hnrologrcs In additron Perdrdo and BCio wrIl

ritrlr MC rrhirrrpd VrtirI Dowatrr Tier

EVD1 sub ea tre tecFrrrology that received the

2ooB Spotlrght on technology Award at the

rndustrys annual Offshore Technology Conference

the LVDI provrdes customnrers with srgnifrcarrt

added value by allowrng the use of the same

standard tree desrgn anywfrcre in the world

e1d Iiyu Pc drdo arorect atrlizr
rg

Fsca

aior dbucrstrf rruory
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We EXCEL IN THE MARKETS WE SERVE by providing customers

with the highest quality systems processes services

FMC Technologies operates in two business

segments Energy Production Systems and Energy

Processing Systems that support the needs of our

customers in the oil and
gas industry

Our Energy Production Systems segment includes

our subsea and surface businesses that design

manufacture and integrate the equipment and

systems used to produce oil and gas from land

and offshore Revenue for Energy Production

Systems in 2008 was $3.7 billion 27 percent

increase over our 2007 results while operating

profit increased 46 percent during the same period

to $420.7 million Energy Production also generated

inbound orders of $2.9 billion and ended the year

with backlog of $3.3 billion

The continued growth and success of Energy

Production Systems was primarily led by the

strength of our subsea business which posted

$3.0 billion in 2008 revenues 32 percent

year-over-year increase Subsea systems continued

to be FMCs strongest and fastest growing business

and accounted for 66 percent
of our overall

revenues of $4.6 billion during 2008

FMCs subsea systems
business encompasses wide

range of equipment and technologies that are

required to explore drill and develop offshore oil

and gas fields We have strong global presence in

all of the worlds major basins and remain the

industry leader with an approximate 40 percent

market share for subsea trees Our subsea

technologies and the value that we bring to

customers can be categorized in three areas field

development subsea processing and production

enhancement Whether it is high-pressure

high-temperature P/HT trees and weliheads

subsea controls and systems or production

optimization services we add value to our

customers throughout the life of the field

Our surface wellhead business provides well drilling

and completion products and services for projects

on land and in shallow water up to depths of

300 feet 91 meters Surface wellhead contributed

to FMCs sales increase through the significant

growth of well fracturing and well stimulation

products as well as the technologies and services

for developing unconventional oil and gas reserves

u-J

uJ

Subsea gas and liquid separator under construction for

the Pazflor project Subsea separation enables enhanced

production from deepwater reservoir with low pressure



he system also reached significant

performance milestone in November by estabhshing

world deepwater completion record of 9356 feet

8o meters he new record was set at the

Sf clhoperated Silvertip field part of the Perdido

Production id artific hft mc inifold oi the BC pr ct

thc demelopmc nt shorm Braiil to tiliie subsa

gas1liquid pa ition boosting mhnolo es

Development breaking the previous rccord depth of

8995 feet 2740 meters that wo set in the Gulf of

Mexico in uly of 200/ at Anadarko Independence

Huh project

While deepwater operations expose subsea

equipment to high pressures and high temperatures

during production the systems are also subject to

rapid cool down during shut-in or initial start up

procedures To protect the equipment in these

extreme temperatures MC continues to use its

proprietaiy NovalasticTM insulation his

state of the art insulation product can be applied to

trees manifolds jumpers and other subsea

hardware Novalastic also prevents the formation of

hydrates and wax blockage in flowlirres and is seerr

as significant advancement in protecting arid

enhancing subsea equipmcnt

MC FVDI sys ri unc pm it ation csti
ip

nor ci to the PC no 01
Ct
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Another significant technology investment was the

development of our new generation of Light Well

Intervention LWI systems With more than 3000

producing subsea wells in the world today

operators are seeking opportunities to

cost-effectively maintain their subsea weilbores

with minimal productivity interruptions Our

technology was made commercially available in

2005 to StatoilHydro The LWI systems enable well

logging operations downhole repair scale removal

re-perforations and other maintenance and

workover activities on subsea wells from monohull

vessel instead of drilling rig By eliminating the

need for full-sized drilling rig cost is significantly

reduced and wells can be maintained more

frequently This enhances well productivity

increasing oil
recovery

We manufactured two new

LWI systems during 2008 that will be delivered in

early 2009 to StatoilHydro and BP for deployment

in the North Sea

The next generation of FMCs LWI systems will be

deployed in the North Sea in 2009

FMC supplies commercial applications of all-electric

subsea technology and has delivered approximately

120 all-electric systems to customers This includes

58 all-electric actuators and communication units

delivered in 2008 Because of our experience we

were selected by StatoilHydro to develop an

all-electric subsea tree for its Tyrihans field

representing significant milestone in the evolution

of all-electric technology in our industry All-electric

systems provide more rapid and accurate

equipment performance and eliminate the need for

larger and more expensive hydraulic and

electro-hydraulic umbilicals The environmental

benefits are equally compelling as the need for and

disposal of hydraulic fluids is eliminated

Our subsea technologies have played vital role in

the evolution of the subsea oil and
gas industry and

in the process have positioned FMC as the market

leader The future holds significant growth

opportunities for our subsea operations as we

address customer issues including declining

production rates at existing fields and need to

enter more remote and harsh subsea environments

to develop new fields By working to understand our

customers needs and through the continued

introduction of variety of sophisticated technology

solutions our subsea systems will continue to play

central role in meeting the
energy

demands of the

worlds consumers

t3
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Surface Welihead

Our surface welihead business provides products

and services for traditional land-based oil and gas

developments and shallow-water fields as well as

for unconventional developments such as heavy oil

oil sands tight gas and shale

We have long history of technological innovations

beginning with the installation of the first 5000 psi

surface wellhead in the 193os Later we introduced

the industrys first TLP/Spar systems Our surface

wellhead division has also played significant role

in the growth and leadership of our subsea

business since current subsea technologies evolved

from surface products first used onshore

We expanded our Unihead product line of thru-bore

systems with the introduction of the UH-2 wellhead

Originally developed for offshore drilling

applications the UH-2 was introduced to onshore

operators in 2008 It has been widely installed in

fields throughout the United States as well as in

South America Europe and Africa The UH-2

wellhead saves customers time and expense through

its unique design It allows an operator to run and

set several casing strings without the need to

remove the blowout preventers saving considerable

rig time and expense during drilling operations The

UH-2 also secures casing hangers through the use of

an internal latch mechanism instead of using

conventional Iockdown screws

Revenues from wellhead fracturing technologies

increased 77 percent during 2008 as our fracturing

application expanded into British Columbia

Arkansas Louisiana Oklahoma Texas and the

Rockies Well fracturing allows operators to increase

production rates by pumping fluids at high

pressures
into the well to break apart formation

allowing oil and
gas to flow more easily FMCs

patented frac isolation sleeve which protects the

wellhead during the high-pressure fracturing

ioooo psi surface wellhead fracturing tree utilizing

FMCs patented frac isolation sleeve system

procedure also continued to receive strong

customer adoption as revenues increased

significantly in 2008 The demand for fracturing

equipment and services will remain strong growth

component in the future as customers continue to

seek ways to maximize recovery from their wells

International surface wellhead revenues continued

to experience strong growth in Brazil Kazakhstan

North Africa the United Arab Emirates and

Venezuela International sales account for

approximately 70 percent of FMCs global surface

wellhead revenues and we will continue to leverage

our innovative technologies and services to retain

our leadership position

We also saw growth in the unconventional oil and

gas market in 2008 as higher commodity prices

made this segment economically attractive In

particular we expanded our operations in Canada

to support development of tight shale in the Horn

River Basin in British Columbia where demand is

strong for our split Unihead and fracturing

equipment and services

We invested in larger manufacturing and

distribution facility in Edmonton Canada The

expanded capacity uniquely positions FMC to meet

growing customer expectations in this region In

particular development of the Canadian oil sands

the second largest oil reserve in the world requires

use of our thermal wellheads for customers such as

Imperial Oil Canadian Natural Resources EnCana

Husky Energy Total ConocoPhillips Meg Energy

Nexen and North American Oil Sands producing

in situ heavy oil We successfully commissioned

Imperial Oils Cold Lake Mahkeses steam assisted

gravity drainage SAGD pilot and continued to

support three global opportunities for Shell

Schooriebeek Lukoil Komi and Mansarovar

Columbia As result our thermal wellhead revenue

increased 8.7 percent in 2008

15



Our market leadership is sustained

by maintaining

Our Energy Processing Systems businesses design

and manufacturs the equipment necessary
for

customers to produce measure and transfer oil

gas and other materials Customer demand across

all of these businesses resulted in revenues of

$883 milhon in 2008 percent yearover year

increase Operating profit for the segment

experienced similar gain increasing no percent

to $165 million Inbound orders for Energy

Processing increased percent to $866 million for

the year arid backlog was at $313 million at the

end of 2008

he businesses that corrrpr ise nei gy Processing

Systems touch variety of customers throughout

the energy industry luid control sets the standard

for flowline prodcicts prodLiction manifold systems

and pumps FM measurement solutions business

is the world leader in the supply of flow

measurement equipment these metering systems

delivei technical superiority in solutions used for

the custody transfer of liquid and gas products Our

loading systems business provides equipment used

in the loading and offloading of crude oil liquefied

natural gas refined products and hemicals

to arid from vessels railcars and trucks Material

handling solutions supplies state of the art bulk

material handling systems and expertise to

industi ies worldwide arid is market leader

for fuel handling systems used in coal fired power

generation plants

Our Energy Processing Systems businesses meet

the technical econonic and life cycle demands of

customers across the world Fronri our stand alone

products to our fully integrated systems these

cost ePective cngineered solutions have made our

businesses industry leaders and vital contributors to

our customer successes

Icird ontro

MC fluid control business is the wu Ids leading

supplier of flowline products fci hrghpressure

uilfield applications Our products have set the

global industry standard for quality reliability and

service life for almost 75 years fhis includes

Chiksan and Weco59 brand valves swivel joints

and actuators as well as advanced well servicc and

industrial pumps for wide range of applications

In addition our Integrated Services
program

enables our fluid control business to continue to

expand its market presence by leveraging our strong

brands with suite of value added after market

services allowing customers to realize the

maximum value from their flowline assets

his comprehensive program offers customers

total solutions approach for managing fluid control

equipment including inspection arid detailed

maintenance services 8y inspecting equipment for

wear and corrosion customers can avoid an

unplanned equipment outage and ensure safe

operation In addition 0cm maintenance services

allow customers to realize the maximum value from

their flowline assets We currently have 13 service

centers and seven mobile teams in the United

States and an additional five international service

centers strategically located to perform complete

range of maintenance services in our facilities as

well as at customer locations

Fluid control 3anr rr en less Un on ritroduc ii oo8



We take our customcr strvice suoport one stcp

further with our lnteServ tracking and management

system This lntwnet enabled database allows

customers to securely access deta3ed asset

information Using this syst custorm ers can

efficiently pet form and roinplete doumen atron

and certification procedures for their asr ts

anning and tracking tools arc Oso available to

identify usage pattemnc nd to In dule nspections

and euairs educing product life vc Ic no

luid control continued to develop innovative

products with the ntroduc tion of the Harnrnerl ss

Union in cooS Develop nerit of this product began

in response to ustomers equests br fer ways to

perfo high pi
cssure flowline connection

proc edures in the field hr Hamrierless Union

equipp witf guided hammer hat engages with

the union rim and sec nrc or disc sernhl

conner te with nim il amount of strokes -T ie

Hamm Ic Union can hr utilized ir frac tu ir

stimulation ano utner uilfreld operations incrcasng

safety du
rig

well ervice op rations

oading Systenis

MC corrip eted its tath year as he le ding supplier

of NC marine loadmg irms ai ice our first de
ivcry

163 oui loading systems business ha become

the leading supplier of fluid oading arid tiansfer

sterns for the oil and gas industry Our hiksan

na inc loading systems are designed to Ilow

tankers barges trucks snd railcars to be safely and

efficiently loaded arid unloaded with variety of

petroleum products chemical products and

liquefied gases at ambient elevated and ryogenic

temperatures

In August Samsung Heavy Industries and Flex

awarded our loading systems business with an

order for the industry first offloading system

fur floating vessels The ability to

transfer offshore between vessels arid

terminals rep esc nts significant advancement for

tI industry The contract is the largest received

the history of our Icrading systems husinrss For this

application we will supply up to fivt NC

o1f loading systems and as rm any as offshore

arms equipped with our patented targeting systcms

be weerr 09 sod ao

LU

This revolutionary technology is based on

fiiksan marine loading air is in unstant nriotion

swive joints The equipment wil allow Floating

Product ron Storage irid Offloading vessel ftP4 or

oatinrg Storage arid Regasificaticni tJnit SRU to

perform side by side offshore loauing to or from sn

NC sFrcittle carrier als designed to withstand

vessel movemcnt typica ly icuunitered at sea even

ii moderate to diffic ult conditions ach ystem also

contains patenrted enhanced connectronr tar getirig

systcm that we developrd and qualifimd together

with Shell Clobal Solutions the sysiomn ensures

af and reliable connection arid dis onn ct on

process betweer veoels ssht trans ring fluids in

LT

tf

Lfl

ooerr sea operating cnvironments

SIC NC ottlo
rig sy ii inc uding tIre patented

ri anced coniicct on targeting syste



By istenmg to mr customers we under stooc the

emerging demand fur oHshore tNC loading systems

and th need for technical solutions to make it

pea ihle We positioned our patented technologies

at the to ef out of inrrovatiori in this field

Mea to mt nt Solutions

Mt rneasuremr nt solutions business provides

cur iplete ange of products for thc precise

measurc merit of crud oil nat iral gas aid efrnred

products it the welll cad in the pipeline or at the

refinery With Be years of experience in the design

rnanufa ore and supply of measurern products

irrd ystems FML has becurnre global leader in the

industry su rpor ted strong brands such as our

Smith Meter oroducts ch installatiorrs in over

100 uuntries

We cor rue to expand our ra ige
of products rd

servrr es by corrrb ni ig our cxpertise and capabilitie

with industry ading subsea oduction equipment

and syste is This includes the evelopme rt of the

crcear Flo
rglc phase flow mete tF at was

introduced into subsea production wells this meter

rrreasures the flow rite of wa er infected rrrtn ubsea

gas wells allowrn buildup of pressure to assist

the movcment gas to the surface the meter

dlso used for gas lifting applications when oil

requires rddrt onal pressure as istancc rrr order to

he moved to the surface platform Our ocean flo

rrretcr is the first single phase low meter to be

rated arid qualified at ooo psi arrd its remote

sealrrrg tec.hrrology significantly ii duces the risk of

subsea hydrate fo rnaticrn

Or Smitfr Meter products are us extens vcly

tfre owing brofiiels market Congress has

rrraridated that biofuels rnclud
ng

ethanol rrru

rke up of the domestic pitroleum supply rn

the ttnrtcd States by the
yr

ar 2030 By nlyrrig urn

our proven nor asurerrrent solutions including

mnretc contrc valves sjainer arid dec tr ornrc load

controllers ou customers can ensure their blending

processes
II oruduce consistent fuels that deliver

rclrahlc performance

Our Smith Meter prodcrc ts are used in any

cation ludrng the aictrr of bnofuels



Matenal Han ih ig ouUons

LMC exper renc in providing material ha dlir

solutions to indusr res ac ross the globe spans more

than rentury During that tirnc we ha developed

strong partnership with coripani rn more than 40

countries due to the de send ib htv and high

productivity oT our coivcying aid processing

oducts includnig our ye satile Syntron an

irk Belt brand

As sding world cIa suppl er our products

uppo variety of edustries mc uding power

mining xtroleum cement and pul and paper

he United States has ci orrnous coal serves tha

prov de more ti an calf of the country power this

mar ket has een rung activity cc to ncr ased

dem end or powe goner ation Demand was urther

ngthened by increased instalations of flue gas

desulfurization CD sys ems at mar existing

plants These Ft sy tcins equire our nveying

systems to effic ientny deli mx estone ird collect

gypsum during fe coal fired steam gene atic

ocess Our material handlrng cyst ms bcisrrrcss

also supported the cc nstructrcrn of new plants

retrofits arid the cxpans on of isti ig equipment

ax the oal fired power gcrier etiori rriarkc added

pioduction ipacity dun ig he past year

Duc to our capabilities experience and reliability

rec ived our largest award tu supply the

corripk Ic coal and rmestone ha idli systems for

ftc Pr arrie ate nrrgy Campcis Pr olect ocatcd

Lively rove Illinois thi iboo rn gawatt

nine nerouth power plan prolect the newest

and là gest coal tired power facility under

corrstrc ctron in the nited Mites

The fitur fcir our ni etc ral handling sysle Tic

hcisine remarrrs strong New am mode

technologies nrc uding clean coal oal to liquid

and coal gasific atior are expec ted to esult in the

construction of additional coal fred power plant.

hese new opportunities as well as xnting

customer demand for bcilk mdterial han ding

sy tems will require the exper enrce arid

per forrriance that FMU is known for the many

irrdtrax cc er

Mate rral hamrdl
rig

so uio is ink Belt conveying trTs



This is the company we aspre to be

Our Core lues guide ho rnteract wrtlr all of

our key st keholder our ustor icr shareholders

co rrrrc nrtics arid supplrerc irrd wrth one mother

Icc hrrologrcs Core Vdues are
rrteg rty

inovatrorr cc lab rr it ron tespc Aceountabr ty
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gloh resourc md orr rnue to develop

nnovatrve oru
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conduct bus rr ss arrd gurde our ror ar
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ortiprty of lntr it
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act rn profess onal ha and ethmcal nrranncr
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technologres and strmse to advance the knowlcogc

base of the irrdustry

Custo Ten cc J5
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workrng ollahor rvc bus rrcss partnc Qu lity
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Great Place to Work

We attract retain and develop the most talented

professionals in the industry and collaborate with

employees in all aspects of their career

development FMC Technologies values the

uniqueness of every individual employee and

recognizes the many benefits that result from

possessing diverse workforce We do not tolerate

discrimination in any form and seek to foster an

environment of trust and respect

Good Neighbors

We seek opportunities to enhance the communities

in which we operate We all benefit by encouraging

employees to engage in their communities and

providing them with the support needed to make

difference We especially seek to promote the

enrichment of young lives through improved

education and opportunities to grow and develop

Quabty

We will excel in the markets we serve by providing

our customers the highest quality systems

processes and services

HSE focus all we do

focus on health safety and the environment

supports our growth and success the safety of our

employees and customers is paramount We all

benefit by leading our industry in health and safety

performance and by conducting our business in an

environmentally friendly manner

Performance Excellence

Superior performance and integrity are the

foundation of FMC and these will continue to serve

as guiding principles to our operations We have

established processes and procedures to ensure

integrity in our products our people and our results

in order to set the standard for corporate

responsibility and performance excellence

Respect

We empower our people support

our communities and respect and

embrace diversity

Arc unt hility

Our ens of re pon ibdity in II

aspe
of our hu in will ver

way

Heatth Safety Environment

We establish standards to operate in

the safest manner possible promote

employee health and protect the

environmnt

En

Ui
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

We are global provider of technology solutions for the energy industry We design manufacture and

service technologically sophisticated systems and products such as subsea production and processing systems

surface wellhead production systems high pressure
fluid control equipment measurement solutions and marine

loading systems for the oil and gas industry Our operations are aggregated into two reportable segments Energy

Production Systems and Energy Processing Systems Financial information about our business segments is

incorporated herein by reference from Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K

We were incorporated in November 2000 under Delaware law and were wholly owned subsidiary of FMC

Corporation until our initial public offering in June 2001 when 17% of our common stock was sold to the public

On December 31 2001 FMC Corporation distributed its remaining 83% ownership of our stock to FMC

Corporations stockholders in the form of dividend

In October 2007 we announced the intention to spin-off 100% of our FoodTech and Airport Systems

businesses On July 12 2008 our Board of Directors approved the spin-off of the businesses to our shareholders

The spin-off was accomplished on July 31 2008 through tax-free dividend to our shareholders We distributed

0.2 16 shares of John Bean Technologies Corporation JBT common stock for every share of our stock

outstanding as of the close of business on July 22 2008 We did not retain
any

shares of JBT common stock JBT

is now an independent public company traded on the New York Stock Exchange symbol JBT The results of

JBT have been reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented

Prior to the spin-off we received necessary regulatory approvals including private letter ruling from the

Internal Revenue Service IRS regarding the tax-free status of the transaction for U.S federal income tax

purposes and declaration of effectiveness from the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC for JBTs

registration statement on Form 10 For additional information related to the spin-off of JBT see Note to our

consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Our principal executive offices are located at 1803 Gears Road Houston Texas 77067 As used in this

report except where otherwise stated or indicated by the context all references to FMC Technologies we
us or our are to FMC Technologies Inc and its consolidated subsidiaries

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 as amended are available free of charge through our website at www.fmctechnologies.com under

Investor CenterSEC Filings Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2008 is

also available in print to any
stockholder free of charge upon written request submitted to Jeffrey Can Vice

President General Counsel and Secretary FMC Technologies Inc 1803 Gears Road Houston Texas 77067

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K we incorporate by reference certain information from our

Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders The SEC allows us to disclose important

information by referring to it in that manner Please refer to such information We provide stockholders with an

annual report containing financial information that has been examined and reported upon with an opinion

expressed thereon by an independent registered public accounting firm On or about March 30 2009 our Proxy

Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be available on our website under Investor

CenterSECFilings Similarly our 2008 Annual Report to Stockholders will be available on our website under

Investor CenterAnnual Reports



BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Energy Production Systems

Energy Production Systems designs and manufactures systems and provides services used by oil and gas

companies involved in land and offshore including deepwater exploration and production of crude oil and gas
Our production systems control the flow of oil and gas from producing wells We specialize in offshore

production systems and have manufacturing facilities near most of the worlds principal offshore oil and gas

producing basins We market our products primarily through our own technical sales organization Energy

Production Systems revenue comprised approximately 81% 79% and 77% of our consolidated revenue in 2008
2007 and 2006 respectively

Principal Products and Services

Subsea Production Systems Subsea systems represented approximately 66% 62% and 61% of our

consolidated revenues in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Our systems are used in the offshore production of

crude oil and natural gas Subsea systems are placed on the seafloor and are used to control the flow of crude oil

and natural gas from the reservoir to host processing facility such as floating production facility fixed

platform or an onshore facility Our subsea equipment is remotely controlled by the host processing facility

The design and manufacture of our subsea systems require high degree of technical expertise and

innovation Some of our systems are designed to withstand
exposure to the extreme hydrostatic pressure that

deepwater environments present as well as internal
pressures of up to 15000 pounds per square inch psi and

temperatures in excess of 350 The foundation of this business is our technology and engineering expertise

The development of our integrated subsea systems usually includes initial engineering design studies

subsea trees control systems manifolds seabed template systems flowline connection and tie-in systems

installation and workover tools and subsea wellheads In order to provide these systems and services we utilize

engineering project management global procurement manufacturing assembly and testing capabilities Further

we provide service technicians for installation assistance and field support for commissioning intervention and

maintenance of our subsea systems throughout the life of the oilfield Additionally we provide tools such as our

riserless light well intervention
system for certain well workover and intervention tasks

Surface Production Systems In addition to our subsea systems we provide full range of surface wellheads

and production systems for both standard service and critical service applications Surface production systems or

trees are used to control and regulate the flow of oil and
gas

from the well Our surface products and systems are

used worldwide on both land and offshore platforms and can be used in difficult climatic conditions such as

arctic cold or desert high temperatures We support our customers through leading engineering manufacturing

field installation support and aftermarket services Surface products and systems represented approximately

14% 16% and 16% of our consolidated revenues in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Separation Systems We design and manufacture systems that separate production flows from wells into oil

gas and water Our separation technology improves upon conventional separation technologies by moving the

flow in spiral spinning motion This causes the elements of the flow stream to separate more efficiently These

systems are currently capable of operating onshore or offshore and subsea began successful operation in 2007

Status of Product Development

We continue to advance the development of subsea separation processing technologies Subsea processing is

an emerging technology in the industry which we believe offers considerable benefits to the oil and gas

producer enabling more rapid and cost-efficient approach to separation If separation is performed on the

seabed the hydrostatic pressure of the fluid going from the seabed to the surface is reduced allowing the well to

flow more efficiently accelerating production and enabling higher recoveries from the subsea reservoir Also it



can significantly reduce the capital investment required for floating vessels or platforms since the integration of

processing capabilities will not be required We introduced this technology commercially with StatoilHydros

Tordis field in the North Sea during 2007 We continue to advance our in-line separation technology leveraging

our patented products for gas liquid and sand separation These in-line technologies enable operators to achieve

complete phase separation by using pipe segments and cyclonic technology instead of using conventional

technology that requires several large vessels to do the same job Inline separators will be cost-effective option

in number of surface and subsea applications requiring only 20% of the weight and space required by most

conventional separator systems

Another subsea processing technology we believe will serve this industry in the future is
gas compression in

subsea applications Subsea gas compression allows the operator to maintain
gas production as the reservoir

pressure declines It also boosts gas pressure and allows for transportation of the
gas to shore without the need for

surface facilities We are currently developing subsea control systems for gas compression suitable for large

pressure ratios and volume flow

As the rapidly growing installed base of subsea wells matures and requires maintenance similar to those on

land we believe using wireline or coiled tubing to access the downhole portion of the well will require riserless

well servicing equipment that can be deployed from small vessel We have developed and deployed wireline

based system that is currently working in the North Sea and are in the process
of developing two more advanced

units that will go into operation in 2009

Much of the subsea activity today is taking place in deeper waters requiring major enhancements of our

existing technologies to increase the performance of our equipment and the value of our systems to our

customers in these challenging environments For this purpose we have developed an Enhanced Vertical

Deepwater Tree EVDT system which includes technologically advanced controls and communications capable

of installation and operation in water depths up to 10000 feet and with well bore pressures up to 10000 psi The

system has been designed to minimize installation and operating costs borne by the operator and provide

highly reliable fixture on the seabed to control the flow of hydrocarbons from the well The first EVDT units

were installed in Brazil for Shells BC-b field and in the Gulf of Mexico for Shells Perdido field during 2008

One EVDT unit in the Perdido field was installed at water depth of 9356 feet or 2852 meters setting the

world record for the deepest subsea tree installation

Capital Intensity

Most of the systems and products that we supply for subsea applications are highly engineered to meet the

unique demands of our customers and are typically ordered one or two years prior to installation We commonly

receive advance and progress payments from our customers in order to fund initial development and our working

capital requirements In addition due to factors such as higher engineering content and our manufacturing

strategy of outsourcing certain low value-added manufacturing activities we believe that our Energy Production

Systems business is less capital intensive than our competitors businesses

Dependence on Key Customers

Generally our customers in this segment are major integrated oil or exploration and production companies

With our integrated systems for subsea production we have aggressively pursued alliances with oil and gas

companies that are actively engaged in the subsea development of crude oil and natural gas Development of

subsea fields particularly in deepwater environments involves substantial capital investments by our customers

Our customers have sought the security of alliances with us to ensure timely and cost-effective delivery of subsea

and other energy-related systems
that provide an integrated solution to their needs Our alliances establish



important ongoing relationships with our customers While our alliances do not always contractually commit our

customers to purchase our systems and services they have historically led to and we expect that they will

continue to result in such purchases For instance we have an alliance of this type with StatoilHydro In 2008 we

generated approximately 19% of our consolidated revenues from StatoilHydro

The loss of one or more of our significant oil and
gas company customers could have material adverse

effect on our Energy Production Systems business segment

Competition

Energy Production Systems competes with other companies that supply subsea systems surface production

equipment and separation systems and with smaller companies that are focused on specific application

technology or geographical niche in which we operate Companies such as Cameron International Corporation GE
Vetco Gray Aker Solutions and Wood Group compete with us in the marketplace across our various product lines

Some of the factors on which we compete include reliability cost-effective technology execution and

delivery Our competitive strengths include our intellectual capital experience base and breadth of technologies and

products that enable us to design unique solution for our customers project requirements while incorporating

standardized components to contain costs We have strong presence in all of the major producing basins Our

deepwater expertise experience and technology help us to maintain leadership position in subsea systems

Energy Processing Systems

Energy Processing Systems designs manufactures and supplies technologically advanced high pressure

valves and fittings for oilfield service customers We also manufacture and supply liquid and gas measurement

and transportation equipment and systems to customers involved in the production transportation and processing

of crude oil natural gas and petroleum-based refined products We sell to the end user through authorized

representatives distributor networks and our own technical sales organization The segments products include

fluid control measurement solutions loading systems material handling systems and blending and transfer

systems Energy Processing Systems revenue comprised approximately 19% 21% and 23% of our consolidated

revenue in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Principal Products and Services

Fluid Control We design and manufacture flowline products under the WECO/Chiksan trademarks and

pumps and valves used in well completion and stimulation activities by major oilfield service companies such as

Schlumberger Limited BJ Services Company Halliburton Company and Weatherford International Ltd

Our flowline products are used in equipment that pumps corrosive and/or erosive fluid into well during the

well construction or stimulation process Our reciprocating pump product line includes duplex triplex and

quintuplex pumps utilized in variety of applications The performance of this business typically rises and falls

with variations in the active rig count throughout the world

Measurement Solutions Systems Our measurement systems provide solutions for use in custody transfer of

crude oil natural gas and refined products We combine advanced measurement technology with state-of-the-art

electronics and supervisory control systems to provide the measurement of both liquids and gases for purposes of

verifying ownership and determining revenue and tax obligations Our Smith Meter product lines are well

established in the industry

Loading Systems We provide land and marine-based fluid loading and transfer systems primarily to the oil

and gas industry Our systems are capable of loading and offloading marine vessels transporting wide range of

fluids such as crude oil liquefied natural
gas

and refined products While these systems are typically constructed



on fixed jetty platform we have also developed advanced loading systems that can be mounted on vessel or

structure to facilitate ship-to-ship or tandem loading and offloading operations in open seas or exposed locations

Material Handling Systems We provide material handling systems including bulk conveying systems to the

power generation industry We provide innovative solutions for conveying feeding screening and orienting bulk

product for customers in diverse industries Our process engineering mechanical design and project

management expertise enable us to execute these projects on turnkey basis

Blending and Transfer Systems We provide engineering design and construction management services in

connection with the application of blending technology process controls and automation for manufacturers in the

lubricant petroleum additive fuel and chemical industries

Dependence on Key Customers

No single Energy Processing Systems customer accounts for more than 10% of our annual consolidated

revenue

Competition

Energy Processing Systems currently has the first or second largest market share for its primary products

and services Some of the factors upon which we compete include technological innovation reliability and

product quality Energy Processing Systems competes with number of companies primarily in the
gas

and

liquid custody transfer high-pressure pumping services and fluid loading and transfer systems
industries

OTHER BUSINESS INFORMATION RELEVANT TO OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Order Backlog

Information regarding order backlog is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled Inbound

Orders and Order Backlog in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

Our business segments purchase carbon steel stainless steel aluminum and steel castings and forgings both

domestically and internationally We do not use single source suppliers for the majority of our raw material

purchases and believe the available supplies of raw materials are adequate to meet our needs

Research and Development

We are engaged in research and development activities directed primarily toward the improvement of

existing products and services the design of specialized products to meet specific customer needs and the

development of new products processes and services large part of our product development spending in the

past has focused on the standardization of our subsea and surface product lines With standardized products we

can minimize engineering content improve inventory utilization and reduce cost through value engineering

Additional financial information about Company-sponsored research and development activities is incorporated

herein by reference from Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Patents Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

We own number of U.S and foreign patents trademarks and licenses that are cumulatively important to

our businesses As part of our ongoing research and development we seek patents when appropriate for new



products and product improvements We have approximately 900 issued patents and pending patent applications

worldwide Further we license intellectual property rights to or from third parties We also own numerous U.S
and foreign trademarks and trade names and have approximately 300 registrations and pending applications in

the United States and abroad

We protect and promote our intellectual property portfolio and take those actions we deem appropriate to

enforce our intellectual property rights and to defend our right to sell our products We do not believe however

that the loss of
any one patent trademark or license or group

of related patents trademarks or licenses would

have material adverse effect on our overall business

Employees

As of December 31 2008 we had approximately 9800 full-time employees approximately 2800 in the

United States and 7000 in non-U.S locations small
percentage of our U.S employees are represented by

labor unions

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

The majority of our consolidated revenue and segment operating profit are generated in markets outside of

the United States Energy Production Systems and Energy Processing Systems revenue is dependent upon
worldwide oil and gas exploration and production activity Financial information about geographic areas is

incorporated herein by reference from Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Important risk factors that could impact our ability to achieve our anticipated operating results and growth

plan goals are presented below The following risk factors should be read in conjunction with discussions of our

business and the factors affecting our business located elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our

other filings with the SEC

INDUSTRY-RELATED RISKS

Demand for the systems and services provided by our businesses depends on oil and gas industry

activity and expenditure levels which are directly affected by trends in the demand for and price of

crude oil and natural gas

We are substantially dependent on conditions in the oil and gas industry and that industrys willingness and

ability to spend capital on the exploration for and development of crude oil and natural gas Any substantial or

extended decline in these expenditures may result in the reduced discovery and development of new reserves of

oil and gas and the reduced exploitation of existing wells which could adversely affect demand for our systems

and services The level of spending is generally dependent on current and anticipated crude oil and natural gas

prices which have been volatile in the past

The industries in which we operate or have operated expose us to potential liabilities arising out of the

installation or use of our systems that could adversely affect our financial condition

We operate in an industry that is subject to equipment defects malfunctions and failures equipment misuse

and natural disasters the occurrence of which may result in uncontrollable flows of gas or well fluids fires and

explosions Although we have obtained insurance against many of these risks we cannot assure that our

insurance will be adequate to cover our liabilities Further we cannot assure that insurance will generally be

available in the future or if available that premiums will be commercially justifiable If we incur substantial



liability and the damages are not covered by insurance or are in excess of policy limits or if we were to incur

liability at time when we are not able to obtain liability insurance our business results of operations or

financial condition could be materially adversely affected

Our customers industries are undergoing continuing consolidation that may impact our results of

operations

Some of our largest customers have consolidated and are using their size and purchasing power to achieve

economies of scale and pricing concessions This consolidation may result in reduced capital spending by such

customers or the acquisition of one or more of our other primary customers which may lead to decreased

demand for our products and services We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain our level of sales to

any customer that has consolidated or replace that revenue with increased business activities with other

customers As result this consolidation activity could have significant negative impact on our results of

operations or financial condition We are unable to predict what effect consolidations in the industries may have

on prices capital spending by our customers our selling strategies our competitive position our ability to retain

customers or our ability to negotiate favorable agreements with our customers

Our operations and the industries in which we operate are subject to variety of U.S and

international laws and regulations that may increase our costs limit the demand for our products and

services or restrict our operations

We depend on the demand for our systems and services from oil and gas companies This demand is

affected by changing taxes price controls and other laws and regulations relating to the oil and gas industry For

example the adoption of laws and regulations curtailing exploration and development of drilling for crude oil

and natural gas in our areas of operation for economic environmental or other reasons could adversely affect our

operations by limiting demand for our systems and services In light of our foreign operations and sales we are

also subject to changes in foreign laws and regulations that may encourage or require hiring of local contractors

or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of or purchase supplies from particular non-U.S jurisdiction

In addition environmental laws and regulations affect the systems and services we design market and sell

as well as the facilities where we manufacture our systems We are required to invest financial and managerial

resources to comply with environmental laws and regulations and anticipate that we will continue to be required

to do so in the future Because these laws and regulations change frequently we are unable to predict the cost or

impact that they may have on our businesses The modification of existing laws or regulations or the adoption of

new laws or regulations imposing more stringent environmental restrictions could adversely affect our

operations

COMPANY-RELATED RISKS

Disruptions in the political regulatory economic and social conditions of the foreign countries in

which we conduct business could adversely affect our business or results of operations

We operate manufacturing facilities in 13 countries outside of the United States and approximately 76% of

our 2008 revenue was generated internationally Instability and unforeseen changes in the international markets

in which we conduct business including economically and politically volatile areas such as North Africa West

Africa the Middle East Latin America and the Asia Pacific region could cause or contribute to factors that

could have an adverse effect on the demand for our systems and services our financial condition or our results of

operations These factors include

foreign currency
fluctuations or currency restrictions

fluctuations in the interest rate component of forward foreign currency rates



nationalization and expropriation

potentially burdensome taxation

inflationary and recessionary markets including capital and equity markets

civil unrest labor issues political instability terrorist attacks military activity and wars

supply disruptions in key oil producing countries

ability of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries OPEC to set and maintain production

levels and pricing

seizure of assets

trade restrictions trade protection measures or price controls

foreign ownership restrictions

import or export licensing requirements

restrictions on operations trade practices trade partners and investment decisions resulting from

domestic and foreign laws and regulations

changes in governmental laws and regulations and the level of enforcement of laws and regulations

inability to repatriate income or capital and

reductions in the availability of qualified personnel

Because significant portion of our revenue is denominated in foreign currencies changes in exchange rates

will produce fluctuations in our costs and earnings and may also affect the book value of our assets located

outside of the U.S and the amount of our stockholders equity Although it is our policy to seek to minimize our

currency exposure by engaging in hedging transactions where appropriate we cannot assure you that our efforts

will be successful To the extent we sell our products and services in foreign markets currency fluctuations may
result in our products and services becoming too expensive for foreign customers

We may lose money on fixed-price contracts

As is customary for the business areas in which we operate we agree to provide products and services under

fixed-price contracts Under these contracts we are typically responsible for cost overruns Our actual costs and

any gross profit realized on these fixed-price contracts may vary from the estimated amounts on which these

contracts were originally based There is inherent risk in the estimation process including significant unforeseen

technical and logistical challenges or longer than expected lead times fixed-price contract may prohibit our

ability to mitigate the impact of unanticipated increases in raw material prices including the price of steel

through increased pricing Depending on the size of project variations from estimated contract performance

could have significant impact on our operating results

Due to the types of contracts we enter into the cumulative loss of several major contracts or alliances

may have an adverse effect on our results of operations

We often enter into large long-term contracts and leases that collectively represent significant portion of

our revenue These agreements if terminated or breached may have larger impact on our operating results or

our financial condition than shorter-term contracts due to the value at risk If we were to lose several key

alliances or agreements over relatively short period of time we could experience significant adverse impact on

our financial condition or results of operations
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Our businesses are dependent on the continuing services of certain of our key managers and

employees

We depend on our senior executive officers and other key personnel The loss of
any

of these officers or key

management could adversely impact our business if we are unable to implement key strategies or transactions in

their absence In addition competition for qualified employees among companies that rely heavily on

engineering and technology as we do is intense The loss of qualified employees or an inability to attract retain

and motivate additional highly skilled employees required for the operation and expansion of our business could

hinder our ability to conduct research activities successfully and develop marketable products and services

Increased costs of raw materials and other components may result in increased operating expenses

and adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows

Our results of operations may be adversely affected by our inability to manage the rising costs and

availability of raw materials and components used in our wide variety of products and systems Unexpected

changes in the size and timing of regional and/or product markets particularly for short lead-time products could

affect our results of operations and our cash flows

Our success depends on our ability to implement new technologies and services

Our success depends on the ongoing development and implementation of new product designs and

improvements and on our ability to protect and maintain critical intellectual property assets related to these

developments If we are not able to obtain patent or other protection of our technology we may not be able to

continue to develop systems services and technologies to meet evolving industry requirements and if so at

prices acceptable to our customers

Some of our competitors are large national and multinational companies that may be able to devote greater

resources to research and development of new systems services and technologies than we are able to do

Moreover some of our competitors operate in narrow business areas allowing them to concentrate their research

and development efforts directly on products and services for those areas If we are unable to compete effectively

given these risks our business results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected

Our inability to deliver our backlog on time could affect our future sales and profitability and our

relationships with our customers

Many of the contracts we enter into with our customers require long manufacturing lead times and may

contain penalty clauses relating to on-time delivery failure by us to deliver in accordance with customer

expectations could subject us to financial penalties and may result in damage to existing customer relationships

Additionally we include within our earnings guidance to the financial markets our expectations regarding the

timing of delivery of product currently in backlog Failure to deliver backlog in accordance with expectations

could negatively impact our financial performance and thus cause adverse changes in the market price of our

outstanding common stock

Our businesses are subject to variety of governmental regulation

We are exposed to variety of federal state local and international laws and regulations relating to matters

such as environmental health and safety labor and employment import/export control currency exchange

bribery and corruption and taxation These laws and regulations are complex change frequently and have tended

to become more stringent over time In the event the scope of these laws and regulations expand in the future the

incremental cost of compliance could adversely impact our financial condition results of operations or cash

flows

11



Many of our customers activity levels and spending for our products and services may be affected by

the current deterioration in the credit markets and significant reductions in commodity prices

The recent worldwide shortage of liquidity and credit to fund industrial business operations combined with

substantial losses in worldwide equity markets could lead to an extended global economic recession Many of

our customers finance their activities through cash flow from operations the incurrence of debt or the issuance of

equity Recently there has been significant decline in the credit markets and the availability of credit

Additionally many of our customers equity values have substantially declined The combination of reduction

of cash flow resulting from declines in commodity prices reduction in borrowing bases under reserve based

credit facilities and the lack of availability of debt or equity financing may result in significant reduction in our

customers spending for our products and services During the second half of 2008 and now continuing into

2009 crude oil prices have dropped substantially An extended worldwide economic recession could lead to

further reductions in worldwide demand for energy and thus lower oil and natural gas prices Any prolonged

reduction in oil and natural gas prices is likely to depress short-term exploration development and production

and expenditure levels Oil and gas company perceptions of longer-term lower oil and natural gas prices may
reduce or defer major expenditures on long-term large scale development projects Lower levels of oil and gas

industry activity and expenditure levels could result in decline in demand for our systems and services and

could have an adverse effect on our revenue and profitability These same factors may result in our customers

inability to fulfill their contractual obligations to us

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

We lease our executive offices in Houston Texas We operate 19 manufacturing facilities in 14 countries

We believe our properties and facilities meet present requirements and are in good operating condition and

that each of our significant manufacturing facilities is operating at level consistent with the requirements of the

industry in which it operates

The significant production properties for the Energy Production Systems operations currently are

Square Feet Leased or

Location approximate Owned

United States

Houston Texas 390000 Leased

Oklahoma City Oklahoma 31000 Leased

International

Kongsberg Norway 657000 Leased

Rio de Janeiro Brazil 517000 Owned

Nusajaya Malaysia 392000 Owned

Singapore 263000 Owned

Sens France 185000 Owned

Dunfermline Scotland 162000 Owned

Pasir Gudang Malaysia 116000 Leased

Maracaibo Venezuela 60000 Owned

Edmonton Canada 57000 Leased

Jakarta Indonesia 44000 Owned

Collecchio Italy 34000 Leased

Arnhem The Netherlands 26000 Owned

These facilities are production properties for both Energy Production Systems and Energy Processing Systems
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The significant production properties for the Energy Processing Systems operations currently are

Square Feet Leased or

Location approximate Owned

United States

Tupelo Mississippi 330000 Owned

Stephenville Texas 300000 Owned

Erie Pennsylvania 240000 Owned

International

Ellerbek Germany 200000 Owned

Changshu China 64000 Leased

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are the named defendant in number of lawsuits however while the results of litigation cannot be

predicted with certainty management believes that the most probable ultimate resolution of these matters will

not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008

Pursuant to General Instruction G3 the information regarding our executive officers called for by

Item 40 1b of Regulation S-K is hereby included in Part of this Form 10-K

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of FMC Technologies together with the offices currently held by them their

business experience and their
ages as of February 27 2009 are as follows

Name Age Office year of election and other information for past five years

Peter Kinnear 61 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer 2008 President and Chief

Executive Officer 2007 President and Chief Operating Officer 2006
Executive Vice President 2004 Vice President 2001

William Schumann III 58 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2007 Senior Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer 2001 Treasurer 2002-2004

John Gremp 57 Executive Vice PresidentEnergy Systems 2007 Vice President and Group

ManagerEnergy Production 2004 General Manager 2002
Tore Halvorsen 54 Senior Vice PresidentGlobal Subsea Production Systems 2007 Vice

PresidentSubsea Systems Eastern Hemisphere 2004 Managing Director of

FMC Kongsberg Subsea AS 1994
Robert Potter 58 Senior Vice PresidentEnergy Processing and Global Surface Wellhead

2007 Vice PresidentEnergy Processing Systems 2001

Jeffrey Carr 52 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary 2001

Maryann Seaman 46 Vice President Administration 2007 Director of Investor Relations and

Corporate Development 2003

Jay Nutt 45 Corporate Controller 2008 ControllerEnergy Systems 2007
ControllerEnergy Production Systems 2001

No family relationships exist among any of the above-listed officers and there are no arrangements or

understandings between any of the above-listed officers and any other person pursuant to which they serve as an

officer During the past five years none of the above-listed officers have been involved in any legal proceedings

as defined in Item 401t of Regulation S-K All officers are elected to hold office until their successors are

elected and qualified
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol FF1 Market information

with respect to our common stock is incorporated herein by reference from Note 20 to our consolidated financial

statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

As of February 20 2009 there were 4535 holders of record of FMC Technologies common stock On

February 20 2009 the last reported sales price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange was

$26.29

We have not declared or paid cash dividends in 2008 or 2007 and we do not currently have plan to pay

cash dividends in the future

On July 18 2007 we announced that our Board of Directors approved two-for-one stock split in the form

of stock dividend that was paid on August 31 2007 to shareholders of record as of August 17 2007

In October 2007 we announced the intention to spin-off 100% of our FoodTech and Airport Systems

businesses On July 12 2008 our Board of Directors approved the spin-off of the businesses to our shareholders

The spin-off was accomplished on July 31 2008 through tax-free dividend to our shareholders We distributed

0.216 shares of JBT common stock for every share of our stock outstanding as of the close of business on

July 22 2008 We did not retain any shares of JBT common stock

As of December 31 2008 our securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans were as

follows

Number of securities

Number of securities to be remaining available

issued upon exercise of Weighted average exercise for future issuance

outstanding options price of outstanding options under equity

warrants and rights warrants and rights compensation plans

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 8136l0 $10.14 157695412

Equity compensations plans not approved

by security holders

Total 8136l0 $10.14 157695412

The table includes the number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of outstanding options to

purchase shares of FMC Technologies Common Stock under the Amended and Restated FMC Technologies

Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan the Plan The table does not include shares of restricted stock

that have been awarded under the Plan but which have not yet vested

The table includes shares available for future issuance under the Plan excluding the shares quantified in the

first column This number includes 2790112 shares available for issuance for nonvested stock awards that

vest after December 31 2008
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We had no unregistered sales of equity securities during the three months ended December 31 2008 The

following table summarizes repurchases of our common stock during the three months ended December 31
2008

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Maximum
Number

of Shares that

Total Number of may yet be

Shares Purchased as Purchased
Total Number Part of Publicly under the Plans

of Shares Average Price Paid Announced Plans or or Programs
Period Purchased per Share Programs

October 2008 October 31 2008 3400 $37.46 9684846
November 2008 November 30 2008 19200 $25.62 9684846
December 2008 December 31 2008 3490 $23.34 9684846

Total 26090 $26.85 9684846

Represents zero shares of common stock repurchased and held in treasury and 26090 shares of common

stock purchased and held in an employee benefit trust established for the FMC Technologies Inc

Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan In addition to these shares purchased on the open market we

sold 20830 shares of registered common stock held in this trust as directed by the beneficiaries during the

three months ended December 31 2008

In 2005 we announced repurchase plan approved by our Board of Directors authorizing the repurchase of

up to two million shares of our outstanding common stock through open market purchases The Board of

Directors has authorized extensions of this program adding five million shares in February 2006 and eight

million shares in February 2007 for total of fifteen million shares of common stock authorized for

repurchase As result of the two-for-one stock split on August 31 2007 the authorization was increased to

30 million shares

On July 12 2008 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of $95.0 million of shares of our

outstanding common stock in addition to the maximum number of shares remaining for purchase under our

previously authorized plans We completed the purchase under the $95.0 million authorized plan in

September 2008 Total shares of common stock purchased were 1810010 These shares have been reflected

in the maximum number of shares that may yet be purchased under the plans or programs calculation
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ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON DEC 31 2003

ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DEC 31 2008

The chart compares the percentage change in the cumulative stockholder return on our common stock

against the cumulative total return of the Philadelphia Oil Service Sector Index OSX and the SP Composite

500 Stock Index The comparison is for period beginning December 31 2003 and ending December 31 2008

The chart assumes the investment of $100 on December 31 2003 and the reinvestment of all dividends including

the reinvestment of the JBT stock dividend paid to our shareholders

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC $100 $138 $184 $265 $487 $215

OSX $100 $135 $203 $232 $340 $138

SP 500 $100 $111 $116 $135 $142 90

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financial data derived from our audited financial statements Audited

financial statements for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 and as of December 31 2008 and

2007 are included elsewhere in this report We have reclassified the results of operations of our FoodTech and

Airport Systems businesses and Floating Systems business to income from discontinued operations

In millions except per share data
Years ended December31 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Revenue

Energy Production Systems $3670.7 $2882.2 $2249.5 $1770.5 $1270.1

Energy Processing Systems 883.2 767.7 672.3 521.8 493.3

Other revenue and intercompany eliminations 3.0 1.0 6.4 9.9 17.6

Total revenue $4550.9 $3648.9 $2915.4 $2282.4 $1745.8

Cost of sales $3623.1 $2921.9 $2370.0 $1858.5 $1429.5

Goodwill impairment 6.5

Selling general and administrative expense
351.7 310.6 271.0 228.7 208.8

Research and development expense
45.3 40.8 33.0 29.2 27.5

Total costs and expenses 4020.1 3273.3 2674.0 2116.4 1672.3

Other income expense net 23.0 29.9 7.0 6.3 3.5

Minority interests 1.4 1.1 2.5 3.5 0.1

Income from continuing operations before net interest

expense and income taxes 506.4 404.4 231.9 156.2 77.1

Netinterestexpense 1.5 9.3 6.7 5.4 6.9

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 504.9 395.1 225.2 150.8 70.2

Provision for income taxes 152.0 134.5 62.7 56.9 8.0

Income from continuing operations 352.9 260.6 162.5 93.9 62.2

Income from discontinued operations net of income

taxes 8.4 42.2 113.8 12.2 54.5

Netincome 361.3 302.8 276.3 106.1 116.7

In millions except per share data
Years ended December31 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Diluted earnings per share

Income from continuing operations 2.72 1.95 1.16 0.66 0.45

Diluted earnings per share 2.78 2.26 1.97 0.75 0.84

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 129.7 133.8 140.3 141.6 138.6

Common stock price range

High 80.86 66.86 35.67 21.89 17.25

Low 20.34 27.76 22.50 14.53 10.99

Cash dividends declared
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As of December31 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Balance sheet data

Total assets $3586.3 $3211.1 $2487.8 $2095.6 $1893.9

Net debt cash 154.9 0.2 138.9 103.0 39.0

Long-termdebtlesscurrentportion 472.0 112.2 212.6 252.6 160.4

Stockholders equity 696.5 $1021.7 886.0 699.5 662.2

Years ended December31 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Other financial information

Capital expenditures 165.0 179.6 115.6 69.9 26.9

Cash flows provided by operating activities of continuing

operations 261.7 542.8 51.7 79.0 167.6

Segment operating capital employed $1160.1 920.6 964.6 657.5 484.7

Order backlog $3651.2 $4490.7 $2332.0 $1662.4 $1270.4

We classified unrealized gains related to unexecuted sales contracts of $7.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2007 from cost of sales to revenue on the consolidated statements of income

We reclassified net discontinued gains on the disposal of assets of $1.1 million for the year ended

December 31 2006 from cost of sales to other income expense net on the consolidated statements of

income

Net debt cash consists of short-term debt long-term debt and the current portion of long-term debt less

cash and cash equivalents Net debt cash is non-GAAP measure that management uses to evaluate our

capital structure and financial leverage See Liquidity and Capital Resources in Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for additional discussion of net debt cash

We view segment operating capital employed which consists of assets net of liabilities as the primary

measure of segment capital Segment operating capital employed excludes corporate debt facilities and

certain investments pension liabilities deferred and currently payable income taxes and LIFO inventory

reserves

Order backlog is calculated as the estimated sales value of unfilled confirmed customer orders at the

reporting date

ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statement under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 FMC
Technologies Inc and its representatives may from time to time make written or oral statements that are

forward-looking and provide information that is not historical in nature including statements that are or will be

contained in this report the notes to our consolidated financial statements our other filings with the Securities

and Exchange Commission our press releases and conference call presentations and our other communications to

our stockholders These statements involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors that may be

outside of our control and may cause actual results to differ materially from any results levels of activity

performance or achievements expressed or implied by any forward-looking statement These factors include

among other things those described under Risk Factors in Item lA of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

In some cases forward-looking statements can be identified by such words or phrases as will likely result is

confident that expects should could may will continue to believes anticipates predicts

forecasts estimates proects potential intends or similarexpressions identifying forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 including the negative of

those words and phrases Such forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions

regarding future events future business conditions and our outlook based on currently available information We

wish to caution you not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements which speak only as of

the date made and involve judgments
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Executive Overview

We design manufacture and service sophisticated machinery and systems for customers in the energy industry

We have manufacturing operations worldwide strategically located to facilitate delivery of our products and

services to our customers Our operations are aggregated into two reportable segments Energy Production

Systems and Energy Processing Systems We focus on economic and industry-specific drivers and key risk

factors affecting our business segments as we formulate our strategic plans and make decisions related to

allocating capital and human resources The following discussion provides examples of the kinds of economic

and industry factors and key risks that we consider

The results of our businesses are primarily driven by changes in exploration and production spending by oil and

gas companies which in part depend upon current and anticipated future crude oil and natural gas demand

production volumes and consequently prices Our Energy Production Systems business is affected by trends in

land and offshore oil and natural
gas production including shallow and deepwater development Our Energy

Processing Systems business results reflect spending by oilfield service companies and engineering construction

companies for equipment and systems that facilitate the flow measurement and transportation of crude oil and

natural gas We use crude oil and natural gas prices as an indicator of demand In the past year oil and natural

gas prices reached all-time highs creating incentives for increased investment by exploration and production

companies in the
energy industry Crude oil and natural gas prices have receded from their high levels due to

among other factors contraction in global energy demand and consequently production volume is declining to

match demand The level of production activity worldwide influences spending decisions and we use rig count

as an additional indicator of demand

We also focus on key risk factors when determining our overall strategy and making decisions for allocating

capital These factors include risks associated with the global economic outlook product obsolescence and the

competitive environment We address these risks in our business strategies which incorporate continuing

development of leading edge technologies cultivating strong customer relationships and growing our energy

business

In 2008 we expanded our portfolio of technology offerings through the purchase of 45% interest in Schilling

Robotics LLC Schilling and further positioned the company for future growth Schilling is California-

based manufacturer of remotely operated vehicles ROVs manipulator systems and other high-technology

equipment used in subsea oil and gas exploration

We have developed close working relationships with our customers in our business segments Our Energy

Production Systems business results reflect our ability to build long-term alliances with oil and natural gas

companies that are actively engaged in offshore deepwater development and provide solutions to their needs in

timely and cost-effective manner We have formed similarcollaborative relationships with oilfield service

companies in Energy Processing Systems We believe that by working closely with our customers we enhance

our competitive advantage strengthen our market positions and improve our results

In October 2007 we announced the intention to spin-off 100% of our FoodTech and Airport Systems businesses

On July 12 2008 our Board of Directors approved the spin-off of the businesses to our shareholders The

spin-off was accomplished on July 31 2008 through tax-free dividend to our shareholders We distributed

0.2 16 shares of JBT common stock for every share of our stock outstanding as of the close of business on

July 22 2008 We did not retain any shares of JBT common stock JBT is now an independent public company

traded on the New York Stock Exchange symbol JBT The results of JBT have been reported as discontinued

operations for all periods presented

Prior to the spin-off we received necessary regulatory approvals including private letter ruling from the IRS

regarding the tax-free status of the transaction for U.S federal income tax purposes and declaration of

effectiveness from the SEC for JBTs registration statement on Form 10 For additional information related to the

spin-off of JBT see Note to our consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K
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As we evaluate our operating results we view our business segments by product line and consider performance

indicators like segment revenues operating profit and capital employed in addition to the level of inbound orders

and order backlog significant and growing proportion of our revenues are recognized under the percentage of

completion method of accounting Our payments for such arrangements are generally received according to

milestones achieved under stated contract terms Consequently the timing of revenue recognition is not always

highly correlated with the timing of customer payments We may structure our contracts to receive advance

payments which we may use to fund engineering efforts and inventory purchases Working capital excluding

cash and net debt are therefore key performance indicators of cash flows

In our segments we serve customers from around the world During 2008 approximately 76% of our total sales

were to non-U.S locations We evaluate international markets and pursue opportunities that fit our technological

capabilities and strategies For example we have targeted opportunities in West Africa Brazil and the Asia

Pacific region because of the expected offshore drilling potential in those regions

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Year Ended December 31 Change

in millions 2008 2007 2006 2008 vs 2007 2007 vs 2006

Revenue $4550.9 $3648.9 $2915.4 $902.0 25% $733.5 25%

Costs and expenses

Costofsales 3623.1 2921.9 2370.0 701.2 24 551.9 23

Selling general and administrative

expense 351.7 310.6 271.0 41.1 13 39.6 15

Research and development expense 45.3 40.8 33.0 4.5 11 7.8 24

Total costs and expenses 4020.1 3273.3 2674.0 746.8 23 599.3 22

Other income expense net 23.0 29.9 7.0 52.9 36.9

Minority interests 1.4 1.1 2.5 0.3 27 1.4 56

Net interest expense 1.5 9.3 6.7 7.8 84 2.6 39

Income before income taxes 504.9 395.1 225.2 109.8 28 169.9 75

Provision for income taxes 152.0 134.5 62.7 17.5 13 71.8 115

Income from continuing operations 352.9 260.6 162.5 92.3 35 98.1 60

Income from discontinued operations net of

income taxes 8.4 42.2 113.8 33.8 71.6

Netincome 361.3 302.8 276.3 58.5 l9%$ 26.5 10%

Not meaningful

2008 Compared With 2007

Our total revenue for the
year ended December 31 2008 reflects growth in both business segments compared to

the prior year Our Energy Production Systems businesses provided $788.5 million of the $902.0 million

increase We benefited from high demand for equipment and systems during 2007 especially subsea systems

used in major oil and gas producing regions throughout the world The favorable market conditions during 2007

produced strong backlog position at December 31 2007 and subsequently higher revenues for the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to the year ended December 31 2007 Energy Processing Systems revenues grew

by $1 15.5 million from the prior year primarily reflecting continued infrastructure investment related to metering

systems and coal-fired power generation

Gross profit revenue less cost of sales increased $200.8 million and as percentage of sales from 19.9% in

2007 to 20.4% in 2008 The increase was primarily attributable to higher sales volume and to lesser extent

higher margins in our Energy Production businesses reflecting more complex subsea projects
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Selling general and administrative SGA expense for 2008 increased compared to 2007 but declined as

percentage of sales from 8.5% in 2007 to 7.7% in 2008 as we continue to leverage our SGA spending The

majority of our increased SGA spending in 2008 was for Energy Production Systems relating to increased sales

volumes

We increased our research and development activities in 2008 as we advance new technologies pertaining to

subsea processing capabilities

Other income expense net reflected non-operating losses of $15.7 million and gains of $27.9 million on

foreign currency derivative instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Additionally we had $7.3 million in compensation expense during

the 2008 year associated with investments held in an employee benefit trust for our non-qualified deferred

compensation plan Further discussion of our derivative instruments is incorporated herein by reference from

Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Net interest expense was lower in 2008 reflective of lower
average

debt levels and lower borrowing costs during

2008

Our provision for income taxes reflected an effective tax rate of 30.1% in 2008 In 2007 our effective tax rate

was 34.0% The decrease in the effective rate in 2008 is primarily related to country mix of earnings The

difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory U.S federal income tax related primarily to differing

foreign and state tax rates

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes for the year ended December 31 2008 primarily

reflects $25.7 million net of tax in operating results of JBT for the seven months ended July 31 2008 partially

offset by $17.8 million net of tax of expenses related to the spin-off of JBT These expenses consist primarily of

non-deductible legal accounting and professional fees to complete the spin-off

Outlook for 2009

We estimate that our full-year 2009 diluted earnings per share will be within the range of $2.40 to $2.65 The

section entitled Operating Results of Business Segments provides further discussion of our 2009 outlook

2007 Compared With 2006

Our total revenue in 2007 reflects double-digit percentage growth over 2006 in both of our business segments

Energy Production Systems generated the highest dollar increase of $632.7 million and the highest growth rate of

28% We entered the year with large backlog resulting from high demand for equipment and systems in 2005

and 2006 especially subsea systems used in the major oil and gas producing regions throughout the world

During 2007 oil and gas prices remained high relative to historical levels and land-based drilling activity was

stable which created incentives for investment in the energy industry creating higher demand for our energy

systems and services

Gross profit revenue less cost of sales increased $181.6 million and as percentage of sales from 18.7% in

2006 to 19.9% in 2007 Higher profits were primarily attributable to higher sales volume of $164.8 million and

higher margin in our Energy Production businesses reflecting more complex subsea projects

SGA expense for 2007 increased compared to 2006 but declined as percentage of sales from 9.3% in 2006 to

8.5% in 2007 as we continue to leverage our SGA spending The majority of our increased SGA spending in

2007 was for Energy Production Systems relating to improved sales volumes
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We increased our research and development activities in 2007 as we advance new technologies pertaining to

subsea processing capabilities

Other income expense net primarily reflected non-operating gains and losses including gains on foreign

currency derivative instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied and to lesser extent gains and

losses on assets disposals Further discussion of our derivative instruments is incorporated herein by reference

from Notc l4 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Net interest expense was higher in 2007 reflective of higher debt levels on average during 2007

Our provision for income taxes reflected an effective tax rate of 34.0% in 2007 In 2006 our effective tax rate

was 27.8% The increase in the effective tax rate is primarily attributable to the reversal in 2006 of $12.2

million valuation allowance on deferred tax assets related to our Brazilian operations

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes for the year ended December 31 2007 primarily

reflects $39.1 million net of tax in operating results of JBT and $3.1 million gain net of tax on the sale of

one of the FoodTech product lines In 2006 our net income from discontinued operations net of tax reflected

the operating results of JBT and gain of $34.8 million net of tax on the sale of our Floating Systems business

In addition we generated profits from the Floating Systems business during 2006 including $15.0 million or

$9.2 million net of tax on the favorable resolution of claims on large contract

Operating Results of Business Segments

Segment operating profit is defined as total segment revenue less segment operating expenses The following

items have been excluded in computing segment operating profit corporate staff expense interest income and

expense associated with corporate debt facilities and investments income taxes and other expense net
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The following table summarizes our operating results for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Year Ended December 31 Favorable/Unfavorable

in millions 2008 2007 2006 2008 vs 2007 2007 vs 2006

Revenue

Energy Production Systems $3670.7 $2882.2 $2249.5 $788.5 27% $632.7 28%

Energy Processing Systems 883.2 767.7 672.3 115.5 15 95.4 14

Other revenue and intercompany

eliminations 3.0 1.0 6.4 2.0 54

Totalrevenue $4550.9 $3648.9 $2915.4 $902.0 25%$733.5 25%

Net income

Segment operating profit

Energy Production Systems 420.7 287.9 191.2 $132.8 46% 96.7 51%

Energy Processing Systems 165.5 142.5 100.9 23.0 16 41.6 41

Total segment operating profit 586.2 430.4 292.1 155.8 36 138.3 47

Corporate items

Corporate expense 37.5 35.1 32.9 2.4 2.2
Other revenue and other expense net 42.3 9.1 27.3 51.4 36.4

Net interest expense 1.5 9.3 6.7 7.8 84 2.6 39

Total corporate items 81.3 35.3 66.9 46.0 130 31.6 47

Income before income taxes 504.9 395.1 225.2 109.8 28 169.9 75

Provision for income taxes 152.0 134.5 62.7 17.5 13 71.8 115

Income from continuing operations 352.9 260.6 162.5 92.3 35 98.1 60

Income from discontinued operations net of

incometaxes 8.4 42.2 113.8 33.8 71.6

Netincome 361.3 302.8 276.3 58.5 19%$ 26.5 10%

Not meaningful

We report our results of operations in U.S dollars however our earnings are generated in number of currencies

worldwide We generate significant amount of revenues and incur significant amount of costs in Norwegian

Krone Brazilian Real and the Euro for example The earnings of subsidiaries functioning in their local

currencies are translated into U.S dollars based upon the average exchange rate for the period in order to

provide worldwide consolidated results While the U.S dollar results reported reflect the actual economics of the

period reported upon the variances from prior periods include the impact of translating earnings at different

rates

summary of the translation impact on our consolidated results follows

Year ended Year ended

In millions December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Revenue growth

Reported $902.0 $733.5

Due to translation 92.4 $225.8

Segment operating profit growth

Reported $155.8 $138.3

Due to translation 15.3 17.9

The revenue impacts are primarily reflected in Energy Production Systems87% and 93% for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The operating profit impacts are primarily reflected in Energy

Production Systems84% and 95% for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively There was

no material effect of translation on our comparative results of 2006
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Energy Production Systems

2008 Compared With 2007

Energy Production Systems revenue was $788.5 million higher for the year ended December 31 2008 compared

to the same period in 2007 which includes approximately $80.5 million related to foreign currency translation

Segment revenue is affected by trends in land and offshore oil and gas exploration and production including

shallow and deepwater development Higher demand for our products and services in prior periods has resulted

in increased project related subsea systems revenue of $3.0 billion for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to $2.3 billion for the comparable period in 2007 Subsea volumes increased primarily as result of

progress on new and ongoing projects worldwide notably projects located in the North Sea in the Gulf of

Mexico and offshore Brazil

Energy Production Systems operating profit increased by $132.8 million for the year ended 2008 compared to

the same period in 2007 which includes approximately $12.9 million related to foreign currency translation The

increase in sales volume accounted for $120.8 million of the profit increase We achieved approximately $55.1

million in other margin improvements primarily reflective of more complex and higher margin subsea projects

Offsetting these profit increases were $38.9 million in increased selling general and administrative costs

resulting from higher staff levels and $3.4 million in higher costs for research and development of our subsea

and surface technologies

Outlook for 2009

We expect growth in operating profit for Energy Production Systems in 2009 primarily driven by the execution

of our backlog of more complex and higher margin subsea projects Inbound orders in 2009 may be negatively

impacted by global economic conditions as well as lower oil and gas prices

2007 Compared With 2006

Energy Production Systems revenue was $632.7 million higher for the year ended December 31 2007 compared

to the same period in 2006 which includes approximately $200 million related to foreign currency translation

Segment revenue is affected by trends in land and offshore oil and gas exploration and production Our revenue

growth was driven by the trend toward deepwater development During the year ended December 31 2007

higher natural gas and crude oil prices created an incentive for increased exploration and production of these

commodities thereby driving higher demand for our products and services Subsea systems revenue of $2.3

billion increased by $487.4 million in 2007 compared to the same period in 2006 Subsea volumes increased

primarily as result of
progress on new and ongoing projects worldwide notably projects located offshore West

Africa the North Sea in the Gulf of Mexico and offshore Brazil

Energy Production Systems segment operating profit increased by $96.7 million in 2007 compared to the same

period in 2006 which includes approximately $17.0 million related to foreign currency translation The increase

in sales volume accounted for $103.5 million of the profit increase We achieved approximately $23.3 million in

other margin improvements primarily reflective of more complex and higher margin subsea projects Offsetting

these profit increases were $25.0 million in increased selling general and administrative costs mostly higher

staff levels and $8.0 million in higher costs for research and development of our subsea technologies

Energy Processing Systems

2008 Compared With 2007

Energy Processing Systems revenue increased $115.5 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 compared

to the year ended December 31 2007 The increase was driven primarily by higher volume in the Measurement

Solutions and Material Handling businesses reflecting continued infrastructure investment related to metering

systems and coal-fired power generation

24



Energy Processing Systems operating profit for the year
ended December 31 2008 increased $23.0 million

compared to the same period of 2007 Higher product sales volumes contributed $34.5 million of increased

operating profit primarily in the Measurement Solutions and Material Handling businesses partially offset by an

unfavorable product mix increased headcount related selling and administrative costs higher commission

expense
and higher research and development spending in support of improved sales volume

Outlook for 2009

We expect 2009 to reflect lower revenues and operating profits resulting from declines in oil and gas prices land

based rig count an uncertain worldwide economic environment and weak credit markets

2007 Compared With 2006

Energy Processing Systems revenue increased $95.4 million in 2007 compared to 2006 Energy demand

continued to rise in 2007 driving higher oil and gas prices and sustained land-based drilling and fracturing

activity This resulted in higher demand for our fluid control products and our measurement custody transfer

products and systems

Energy Processing Systems 2007 operating profit increased $41.6 million compared to 2006 Higher volume

drove an increase in profits of $33.1 million Cost reduction efforts and our ability to leverage higher sales

volumes led to improved product costs in most of our business units contributing $9.9 million in increased

profits These savings were partially offset by higher selling general and administrative costs including higher

staff levels and increased commission expense

Corporate Items

2008 Compared With 2007

Our corporate
items reduced earnings by $81.3 million in 2008 compared to $35.3 million in 2007 The increase

in expense in 2008 primarily reflects mark-to-market losses on foreign currency forward contracts of $8.7 million

in 2008 compared to gains in the prior year of $30.9 million combined with increased stock-based compensation

of $6.5 million and other corporate staff costs of $2.4 million These costs were partially offset by $7.8 million

decrease in interest expense
attributable to reduced borrowing levels and lower interest rates in 2008

2007 Compared With 2006

Our corporate items reduced earnings by $35.3 million in 2007 compared to $66.9 million in 2006 The decrease

in expense in 2007 reflects mark-to-market gains on foreign currency
forward contracts of $30.9 million in 2007

compared to losses in the prior year
of $9.1 million Partially offsetting these earnings were higher stock-based

compensation of $4.1 million and other corporate staff costs of $2.2 million
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Inbound Orders and Order Backlog

Inbound orders represent the estimated sales value of confirmed customer orders received during the reporting

period and the impact of translation on the previous years backlog Backlog translation negatively affected

orders by $593.1 million in the year ended December 31 2008 and positively affected orders by $290.2 million

in the comparable period of 2007

inbound Orders

Year Ended December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Energy Production Systems $2853.2 $5017.0

Energy Processing Systems 865.9 792.3

Intercompany eliminations 7.6 1.7

Total inbound orders $3.71 .5 $5807.6

Order backlog is calculated as the estimated sales value of unfilled confirmed customer orders at the reporting

date

Order Backlog
December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Energy Production Systems $3345.0 $4162.5

Energy Processing Systems 313.2 330.5

Intercompany eliminations 7.0 2.3

Total order backlog $3651.2 $4490.7

Energy Productions Systems order backlog at December 31 2008 declined by $817.5 million compared to the

prior year period due primarily to the impact of foreign currency translation The 2007 backlog included the

following significant subsea projects Total Pazflor StatoilHydro Ormen Lange Phase II and Vega Woodside

Pluto Shell Gumusut and Petrobras Cascade and Mexilhao Backlog of $3.3 billion at December 31 2008

includes the same projects mentioned above plus orders from BP for its Block 18 field StatoilHydro for its

Heidrun North project as well as additional tree sales for existing projects We expect to convert approximately

70% of backlog into revenue during 2009

Energy Processing Systems order backlog at December 31 2008 decreased 5% compared to December 31
2007 primarily due to the timing of completion on several significant projects and decreased demand for fluid

control material handling and measurement products and services resulting from the deterioration of oil and gas

prices weak credit markets and an uncertain economic outlook We expect to convert approximately 84% of the

December 31 2008 backlog into revenue during 2009

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generate our capital resources primarily through operations and when needed through various credit

facilities
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Our net debt at December 31 2008 was $154.9 million compared with net cash of $0.2 million at December 31

2007 Net debt or net cash is non-GAAP measure reflecting debt net of cash and cash equivalents

Management uses this non-GAAP measure to evaluate our capital structure and financial leverage We believe

that net debt or net cash is meaningful measure which will assist investors in understanding our results and

recognizing underlying trends This measure supplements disclosures required by GAAP The following table

provides details of the balance sheet classifications included in net debt

In millions ___________ ___________

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt

Long-term debt less current portion

Related party note payable ______ ______

Net debt cash
_______ _______

The increase in net debt during 2008 was due primarily to repurchases of our common stock funding for capital

expansion and the acquisition of 45% interest in Schilling partially offset by the cash dividend received from

JBT in connection with the spin-off and cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 were as follows

Year Ended December 31

In millions 2008 2007 2006

Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
261.7 542.8 51.7

Cash required by investing activities of continuing operations 282.9 181.0 122.2

Cash provided required by financing activities 252.7 355.6 141.8

Cash provided required by discontinued operations 15.8 29.0 136.1

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5.1 14.8 2.8

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents
210.6 50.0 73.4

Operating Cash Flows

During the year ended December 31 2008 we generated $261.7 million in cash flows from operating activities

of continuing operations which represented $281.1 million decrease compared to the prior year Cash outflows

for working capital in 2008 were approximately $85.0 million compared to net cash inflow of approximately

$234.0 million in 2007 Higher investments in working capital were due primarily to the required investment in

accounts receivable and inventory in the Energy Production segment Our working capital balances can vary

significantly quarter to quarter depending on the payment terms and timing of delivery on key contracts The

increased investment in working capital was partially offset by the increase in income from continuing

operations Our cash flows from operating activities in 2007 were $491.1 million higher than the prior year The

increase is primarily attributable to the improvements in utilization of working capital

Investing Cash Flows

Our cash requirements for investing activities of continuing operations in the year ended December 31 2008

increased by $101.9 million compared to 2007 We spent $121.3 million on minority ownership positions and

other investments during 2008 including $106.0 million for 45% interest in Schilling During 2007 we spent

$64.4 million on acquisitions including the $59.7 million purchase of the remaining minority interest in CDS

Engineering BV CDS The investments were partially offset by decrease in capital expenditures of $14.6

million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily as result of lower spending on subsea capacity additions and

offshore tooling and intervention assets Additionally we had $3.4 million in proceeds from the disposal of assets

in 2008 compared to $63.0 million in 2007 In 2007 we sold and leased back land and property in Houston

Texas

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

340.1 129.5

23.0 7.2

472.0 112.2

9.9

$154.9 0.2
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Cash required by investing activities in 2006 was $122.2 million primarily reflecting ongoing investment in new

production facilities worldwide primarily associated with increasing subsea and surface welihead capacity

Financing Cash Flows

Cash provided by financing activities was $252.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

cash required of $355.6 million for the same period in 2007 We received proceeds from JRT of $196.2 million

during 2008 in conjunction with the spin-off of JBT Additionally in 2008 we had net proceeds from borrowings

of $369.4 million used to fund share repurchases and portion of the investment in Schilling compared to the

reduction of net borrowings of $98.4 million in 2007 We repurchased 5.7 million of our outstanding common
stock for $324.0 million under our 30 million and $95.0 million share repurchase authorizations an increase of

$36.6 million in repurchases from 2007 In 2006 cash required by financing activities was primarily for the

repurchase of $142.5 million in stock repurchases and the reduction in net borrowings of $38.1 million

Discontinued Operations Cash Flows

Cash required by and provided by discontinued operations in 2008 and 2007 respectively primarily reflected the

operating and investing activities of JBT Cash provided in 2006 primarily reflected the operating and investing

activities of JBT and to lesser extent the proceeds on the sale of Floating Systems in December 2006

Debt and Liquidity

Total borrowings at December 31 2008 and 2007 comprised the following

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Revolving credit facilities $407.0

Commercial
paper 52.0 103.0

Related party note payable 9.9

Uncommitted credit facilities 19.1 6.8

Property financing 8.5 8.9

Other 8.4 0.7

Total borrowings $495.0 $129.3

The following is summary of our credit facilities at December 31 2008

Commercial Letters

In millions Commitment Debt paper of Unused
Description amount outstanding outstanding credit capacity Maturity

Five-year revolving credit facility $600.0 $407.0 $52.0 $26.9 $114.1 December 2012

One-year revolving credit facility 5.0 5.0 December 2009

$605.0 $407.0 $52.0 $26.9 $119.1

Under our commercial paper program we have the ability to access up to $500.0 million of short-term

financing through our commercial paper dealers Our available capacity under our $600 million five-year

revolving credit facility is reduced by any outstanding commercial paper

Committed credit available under our five-year revolving credit facility maturing in December 2012 provides the

ability to issue our commercial paper obligations on long-term basis Therefore at December 2008 as we
have both the ability and intent to refinance these obligations on long-term basis our commercial paper

borrowings were classified as long-term on the consolidated balance sheets
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In December 2007 we entered into $600 million five-year revolving credit agreement maturing in December

2012 with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent Borrowings under the credit agreement accrue

interest at rate equal to at our option either base rate determined by reference to the higher of the

agents prime rate and the federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1% or an interest rate of 45 basis points above the

London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR The margin over LIBOR is variable and is determined based on our

debt rating Among other restrictions the terms of the credit agreement include negative covenants related to

liens and financial covenant related to the debt to earnings ratio We are in compliance with all restrictive

covenants as of December 31 2008

Outlook for 2009

Historically we have generated our capital resources primarily through operations and when needed through

credit facilities In 2008 we witnessed volatility in the credit equity and commodity markets While this creates

some degree of uncertainty for our business management believes we have secured sufficient credit capacity to

mitigate potential negative impacts on our operations We expect to continue to meet our cash requirements with

combination of cash on hand cash generated from operations and our credit facilities

We are projecting to spend approximately $120.0 million during 2009 for capital expenditures primarily for

improvements to our manufacturing and service capabilities and expansion of our well intervention capabilities

We anticipate contributing approximately $34.7 million to our pension plans in 2009 Further we expect to

continue our stock repurchases authorized by our Board with the timing and amounts of these repurchases

dependent upon market conditions and liquidity

On January 13 2009 we entered into $350 million 364-day revolving credit agreement with Bank of America

N.A as Administrative Agent The new facility matures in January 2010 We now have combined committed

bank lines of $950 million that we expect to utilize if working capital temporarily increases in
response to market

demand and when opportunities for business acquisitions or mergers meet our standards We continue to

evaluate acquisitions divestitures and joint ventures in the ordinary course of business

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The following is summary of our contractual obligations at December 31 2008

Payments due by period

In millions Total Less than 1.3 -5 After

Contractual obligations payments year years years years

Long-term debt 475.9 3.9 5.2 $460.1 6.7

Short-term debt 19.1 19.1

Operating leases 239.6 37.0 61.1 42.8 98.7

Unconditional purchase obligations 621.9 351.4 270.5

Pension and other postretirement benefits 34.7 34.7

Unrecognized tax benefits 4.2 4.2

Total contractual obligations $1395.4 $450.3 $336.8 $502.9 $105.4

Our available long-term debt is dependent upon our compliance with covenants including negative

covenants related to liens and financial covenant related to the debt to earnings ratio Any violation of

covenants or other events of default which are not waived or cured or changes in our credit rating could

have material impact on our ability to maintain our committed financing arrangements

Interest on long-term debt is not included in the table As of December 31 2008 we have commercial
paper

borrowings with short-term maturities that we expect to refinance beyond 2009 However we are uncertain

as to the level of commercial
paper or other borrowings and market interest rates that will be applicable

throughout 2009 During 2008 we paid $9.4 million for interest expense
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In the normal course of business we enter into agreements with our suppliers to purchase raw materials or

services These agreements include requirement that our supplier provide products or services to our

specifications and require us to make firm purchase commitment to our supplier As substantially all of

these commitments are associated with purchases made to fulfill our customers orders the costs associated

with these agreements will ultimately be reflected in cost of sales on our consolidated statements of income

We expect to make $34.7 million in contributions to our pension and other postretirement benefit plans

during 2009 This amount does not include discretionary contributions to our U.S qualified pension plan

Required contributions for future years depend on factors that cannot be determined at this time

As of December 31 2008 we have liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $31.0 million Of this

amount we expect to make payments of $4.2 million during 2009 to settle portion of these liabilities and

this amount is reflected in income taxes payable in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

Due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential future cash flows associated with the

remaining $26.8 million in liabilities we are unable to make reasonable estimate of the period in which

such liabilities might be paid

The following is summary of other off-balance sheet arrangements at December 2008

Amount of commitment expiration per period

In millions Total Less than 1-3 3-5 After

Other off-balance sheet arrangements amount year years years years

Letters of credit and bank guarantees $613.1 $226.4 $194.4 $100.0 $92.3

Surety bonds 170.3 141.1 29.2

Total other off-balance sheet arrangements $783.4 $367.5 $223.6 $100.0 $92.3

As collateral for our performance on certain sales contracts or as part of our agreements with insurance

companies we are contingently liable under letters of credit surety bonds and other bank guarantees In order to

obtain these financial instruments we pay fees to various financial institutions in amounts competitively

determined in the marketplace Our ability to generate revenue from certain contracts is dependent upon our

ability to obtain these off-balance sheet financial instruments These off-balance sheet financial instruments may

be renewed revised or released based on changes in the underlying commitment Historically our commercial

commitments have not been drawn upon to material extent consequently management believes it is not likely

that there will be claims against these commitments that will have negative impact on our key financial ratios

or our ability to obtain financing

In connection with the spin-off of JBT we retained liability for various contingent obligations totaling $131.5

million at December 31 2008 Contingent obligations include guarantees on certain performance bonds issued by

JBT We are fully indemnified by JBT pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Separation and Distribution

Agreement dated July 31 2008 between FMC Technologies and JBT Management does not expect any of these

financial instruments to result in losses that if incurred would have material effect on our consolidated

financial position results of operations or cash flows The majority of these obligations will expire before the end

of 20 10

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are subject to financial market risks including fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest

rates In order to manage and mitigate our exposure to these risks we may use derivative financial instruments in

accordance with established policies and procedures We do not use derivative financial instruments where the

objective is to generate profits solely from trading activities At December 31 2008 and 2007 our derivative

holdings consisted of foreign currency forward contracts and foreign currency instruments embedded in purchase

and sale contracts At December 31 2007 our derivative holdings also consisted of interest rate swap

agreements
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These forward-looking disclosures only address potential impacts from market risks as they affect our financial

instruments They do not include other potential effects which could impact our business as result of changes in

foreign currency exchange rates interest rates commodity prices or equity prices

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

When we sell or purchase products or services transactions are frequently denominated in currencies other than

an operations functional
currency

When foreign currency exposures
exist we may enter into foreign exchange

forward instruments with third parties Our hedging policy reduces but does not entirely eliminate the impact of

foreign currency exchange rate movements We expect any gains or losses in the hedging portfolio to be

substantially offset by corresponding gain or loss in the underlying exposure being hedged

We hedge our net recognized foreign currency assets and liabilities to reduce the risk that our earnings and cash

flows will be adversely affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates We also hedge firmly

committed anticipated transactions in the normal course of business The majority of these hedging instruments

mature during 2009

In certain circumstances we enter into purchase and sales contracts which contain payment terms in foreign

currencies This may occur for instance to offset the cost of equipment or services payable in the same currency

Contractual payments required in
currency

that is not the functional or local
currency

of substantial parties to

the contract are embedded derivatives

We use sensitivity analysis to measure the impact on derivative instrument fair values of an immediate 10%

adverse movement in the foreign currency exchange rates This calculation assumes that each exchange rate

would change in the same direction relative to the U.S dollar and all other variables are held constant We expect

that changes in the fair value of derivative instruments will offset the changes in fair value of the underlying

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet To the extent that our derivative instruments are hedging anticipated

transactions 10% decrease in the value of the hedged currency would result in decrease of approximately

$1 1.5 million in the net fair value of derivative financial instruments reflected on our balance sheet at

December 31 2008 Changes in the derivative fair value will not have an immediate impact on our results of

operations unless these contracts are deemed to be ineffective

Interest Rate Risk

Our debt instruments subject us to market risk associated with movements in interest rates We had $495.0

million in variable rate debt outstanding at December 31 2008 upon which interest
expense

is subject to the

movement in LIBOR 10% adverse movement in the interest rate or 16 basis points would result in an

increase to interest
expense

of $0.8 million

At December 31 2007 we had three floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps which we used to hedge $150 million

of variable rate debt We terminated the swaps in January 2008 with no material impact on earnings

We assess effectiveness of forward foreign currency contracts designated as cash flow hedges based on changes

in fair value attributable to changes in spot rates We exclude the impact attributable to changes in the difference

between the spot rate and the forward rate for the assessment of hedge effectiveness and recognize the change in

fair value of this component immediately in earnings The difference between the spot rate and the forward rate

is generally related to the differences in the interest rates of the countries of the currencies being traded

Consequently we have exposure to relative changes in interest rates between countries in our results of

operations To the extent the U.S interest rate decreases by 10% or 16 basis points and other countries interest

rates remain fixed we would expect to recognize decrease of $0.5 million in earnings in the period of change

Based on our portfolio as of December 31 2008 we believe we have exposure to the interest rates in the U.S
Brazil United Kingdom the European Community and Norway
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Critical Accounting Estimates

We
prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting

principles As such we are required to make certain estimates judgments and assumptions about matters that are

inherently uncertain On an ongoing basis our management re-evaluates these estimates judgments and

assumptions for reasonableness because of the critical impact that these factors have on the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the periods presented Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical

accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed

this disclosure We believe that the following are the critical accounting estimates used in preparing our financial

statements

Percentage of Completion Method of Accounting

We record revenue on construction-type manufacturing projects using the percentage of completion method

where revenue is recorded as work progresses on each contract There are several acceptable methods of

measuring progress toward completion Most frequently we use the ratio of costs incurred to date to total

estimated contract costs at completion to measure this progress

We execute contracts with our customers that clearly describe the equipment systems and/or services that we

will provide and the amount of consideration we will receive After analyzing the drawings and specifications of

the contract requirements our project engineers estimate total contract costs based on their experience with

similarprojects and then adjust these estimates for specific risks associated with each project such as technical

risks associated with new design Costs associated with specific risks are estimated by assessing the probability

that conditions will arise that will affect our total cost to complete the project After work on project begins

assumptions that form the basis for our calculation of total project cost are examined on monthly basis and our

estimates are updated to reflect new information as it becomes available

Revenue recorded using the percentage of completion method amounted to $2999.9 million $1890.7 million

and $1552.9 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

significant portion of our total revenue recorded under the percentage of completion method relates to the

Energy Production Systems business segment primarily for subsea petroleum exploration equipment projects

that involve the design engineering manufacturing and assembly of complex customer-specific systems The

systems are not entirely built from standard bills of material and typically require extended periods of time to

design and construct

Total estimated contract cost affects both the revenue recognized in period as well as the reported profit or loss

on project The determination of profit or loss on contract requires consideration of contract revenue change

orders and claims less costs incurred to date and estimated costs to complete Anticipated losses on contracts are

recorded in full in the period in which they are identified Profits are recorded based on the estimated project

profit multiplied by the percentage complete

The total estimated contract cost in percentage of completion accounting is critical accounting estimate because

it can materially affect revenue and cost of sales and it requires us to make judgments about matters that are

uncertain There are many factors including but not limited to resource price inflation labor availability

productivity and weather that can affect the accuracy of our cost estimates and ultimately our future profitability

In the past we have realized both lower and higher than expected margins and have incurred losses as result of

unforeseen changes in our project costs

The amount of revenue recognized using the percentage of completion method is sensitive to our changes in

estimates of total contract costs If we had used different estimate of total contract costs for each contract in

progress at December 2008 1% increase or decrease in the estimated margin earned on each contract would

have increased or decreased total revenue and pre-tax income for the year ended December 31 2008 by $29.4

million
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Inventory Valuation

Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value In order to determine net realizable value we

evaluate each component of inventory on regular basis to determine whether it is excess or obsolete We record

the decline in the carrying value of estimated excess or obsolete inventory as reduction of inventory and as an

expense included in cost of sales in the period in which it is identified Our estimate of excess and obsolete

inventory is critical accounting estimate because it is highly susceptible to change from period to period In

addition it requires management to make judgments about the future demand for inventory

In order to quantify excess or obsolete inventory we begin by preparing candidate listing of the components of

inventory that have quantity on hand in excess of usage within the most recent two-year period This list is then

reviewed with sales engineering production and materials management personnel to determine whether this list

of potential excess or obsolete inventory items is accurate Management considers as part of this evaluation

whether there has been change in the market for finished goods whether there will be future demand for

on-hand inventory items and whether there are components of inventory that incorporate obsolete technology As

result our estimate of excess or obsolete inventory is sensitive to changes in assumptions about future usage of

the inventory

Accounting for Income Taxes

Our income tax expense deferred tax assets and liabilities and reserves for uncertain tax positions reflect

managements best assessment of estimated future taxes to be paid We are subject to income taxes in both the

U.S and numerous foreign jurisdictions Significant judgments and estimates are required in determining our

consolidated income tax expense

In determining our current income tax provision we assess temporary differences resulting from differing

treatments of items for tax and accounting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities

which are recorded in our consolidated balance sheets When we maintain deferred tax assets we must assess the

likelihood that these assets will be recovered through adjustments to future taxable income To the extent we

believe
recovery

is not likely we establish valuation allowance We record an allowance reducing the asset to

value we believe will be recoverable based on our expectation of future taxable income We believe the

accounting estimate related to the valuation allowance is critical accounting estimate because it is highly

susceptible to change from period to period as it requires management to make assumptions about our future

income over the lives of the deferred tax assets and the impact of increasing or decreasing the valuation

allowance is potentially material to our results of operations

Forecasting future income requires us to use significant amount of judgment In estimating future income we

use our internal operating budgets and long-range planning projections We develop our budgets and long-range

projections based on recent results trends economic and industry forecasts influencing our segments

performance our backlog planned timing of new product launches and customer sales commitments

Significant changes in the expected realizability of the deferred tax asset would require that we adjust the

valuation allowance applied against the gross value of our total deferred tax assets resulting in change to net

income

As of December 31 2008 we estimated that it is not more likely than not that we will generate future taxable

income in certain foreign jurisdictions in which we have cumulative net operating losses and therefore we have

provided valuation allowance against the related deferred tax assets As of December 31 2008 we estimated

that it is more likely than not that we will have future taxable income in the United States to utilize our domestic

deferred tax assets Therefore we have not provided valuation allowance against any domestic deferred tax

assets

The need for valuation allowance is sensitive to changes in our estimate of future taxable income If our

estimate of future taxable income was 15% lower than the estimate used we would still generate sufficient

taxable income to utilize such domestic deferred tax assets
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The calculation of our income tax expense involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax

laws and regulations in numerous jurisdictions in which we operate We recognize tax benefits related to

uncertain tax positions when in our judgment it is more likely than not that such positions will be sustained on

examination including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation based on the technical merits We adjust

our liabilities for uncertain tax positions when our judgment changes as result of new information previously

unavailable Due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties their ultimate resolution may result in

payments that are materially different from our current estimates Any such differences will be reflected as

adjustments to income tax expense in the periods in which they are determined

Retirement Benefits

We provide most of our employees with certain retirement pension and postretirement health care and life

insurance benefits In order to measure the expense and obligations associated with these retirement benefits

management must make variety of estimates including discount rates used to value certain liabilities expected

return on plan assets set aside to fund these costs rate of compensation increase employee turnover rates

retirement rates mortality rates and other factors We update these estimates on an annual basis or more

frequently upon the occurrence of significant events These accounting estimates bear the risk of change due to

the uncertainty associated with the estimate as well as the fact that these estimates are difficult to measure

Different estimates used by management could result in our recognizing different amounts of expense over

different periods of time

We use third-party specialists to assist management in evaluating our assumptions as well as appropriately

measuring the costs and obligations associated with these retirement benefits The discount rate and expected

return on plan assets are based primarily on investment yields available and the historical performance of our

plan assets They are critical accounting estimates because they are subject to managements judgment and can

materially affect net income

Pension expense was $34.0 million $26.6 million and $24.1 million for the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively

The discount rate used affects the interest cost component of net periodic pension cost The discount rate is based

on rates at which the pension benefit obligation could effectively be settled on present value basis To

determine the weighted average
discount rate we review long-term high quality AA rated corporate bonds at

our determination date and use model that matches the projected benefit payments for our plans to coupons and

maturities from high quality bonds Significant changes in the discount rate such as those caused by changes in

the yield curve the mix of bonds available in the market the duration of selected bonds and the timing of

expected benefit payments may result in volatility in pension expense and pension liabilities The weighted

average discount rate used to compute net periodic benefit cost increased from 5.6% in 2007 to 6.0% in 2008

Our pension expense is sensitive to changes in our estimate of discount rate Holding other assumptions constant

for 50 basis point reduction in the discount rate annual pension expense
would increase by approximately $6.6

million before taxes Holding other assumptions constant for 50 basis point increase in the discount rate

annual pension expense would decrease by approximately $6.3 million before taxes

Net periodic pension cost includes an underlying expected long-term rate of asset return Our estimate of the

expected rate of return on plan assets is based primarily on the historical performance of plan assets current

market conditions our asset allocation and long-term growth expectations We assumed weighted average

expected rate of return for our pension plans of 8.2 1% and 8.46% in 2008 and 2007 respectively The expected

return on plan assets is recognized as part of the net periodic pension cost The difference between the expected

return and the actual return on plan assets is amortized over the expected remaining service life of employees so
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there is lag time between the markets performance and its impact on plan results Holding other assumptions

constant an increase or decrease of 50 basis points in the expected rate of return on plan assets would decrease or

increase annual pension expense by approximately $4.1 million before taxes

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS No 141R
replacing SFAS No 141 SFAS No 141R changes or clarifies the acquisition method of accounting for acquired

contingencies transaction costs step acquisitions restructuring costs and other major areas affecting how the

acquirer recognizes and measures the assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in

the acquiree In addition this pronouncement amends previous interpretations of intangible asset accounting by

requiring the capitalization of in-process research and development and proscribing impacts to current income

tax expense rather than reduction to goodwill for changes in deferred tax benefits related to business

combination SFAS No 141R will be applied prospectively for business combinations occurring after

December 31 2008

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS No 160 will standardize the accounting for and reporting of

minority interests in the financial statements which will be presented as noncontrolling interests and classified as

component of equity In addition statements of operations will report consolidated net income before an

allocation to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest This new presentation will have an impact on the

basic financial statements as well as the disclosures to clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the

parent and the interests of the noncontrolling interests SFAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2008 and is effective for us at January 2009 We have not yet determined the impact if any that

the adoption of SFAS No 160 will have on our results of operations or financial position

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activitiesan amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SPAS No 161 requires enhanced disclosures regarding

derivative instruments and hedging activities enabling better understanding of their effects on an entitys

financial position financial performance and cash flows SPAS No 161 is effective for financial statements

issued for fiscal years
and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 and is effective for us at

January 2009

Management believes the impact of other recently issued accounting standards which are not yet effective will

not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption

ITEM 7A.QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information regarding market risks is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled Qualitative

and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

In millions except per share data 2008 2007 2006

Revenue $4550.9 $3648.9 $2915.4

Costs and expenses

Costofsales 3623.1 2921.9 2370.0

Selling general and administrative
expense 351.7 310.6 271.0

Research and development expense 45.3 40.8 33.0

Total costs and expenses 4020.1 3273.3 2674.0

Other income expense net 23.0 29.9 7.0

Minority interests 1.4 1.1 2.5

Income before interest income interest expense and income taxes 506.4 404.4 231.9

Interest income 6.6 6.8 5.1

Interest expense 8.1 16.1 11.8

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 504.9 395.1 225.2

Provision for income taxes 152.0 134.5 62.7

Income from continuing operations 352.9 260.6 162.5

Discontinued operations Note

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 7.9 39.1 79.0

Gain on disposition of discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.5 3.1 34.8

Income from discontinued operations 8.4 42.2 113.8

Net income 361.3 302.8 276.3

Basic earnings per
share

Income from continuing operations Note 2.76 1.98 1.19

Income from discontinued operations 0.07 0.33 0.83

Basic earnings per share 2.83 2.31 2.02

Diluted earnings per share

Income from continuing operations Note 2.72 1.95 1.16

Income from discontinued operations 0.06 0.31 0.81

Diluted earnings per share 2.78 2.26 1.97

Weighted average shares outstanding Note

Basic 127.8 131.3 137.0

Diluted 129.7 133.8 140.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

36



FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

In millions except per share data 2008 2007

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
340.1 129.5

Trade receivables net of allowances of $9.4 in 2008 and $2.8 in 2007 996.1 775.7

Inventories Note 559.3 533.2

Fair value of derivative financial instruments Note 14 354.6 154.5

Prepaid expenses
24.2 20.5

Other current assets 156.6 143.2

Income taxes benefit 12.8

Assets of discontinued operations Note 533.8

Total current assets 2443.7 2290.4

Investments 151.2 33.4

Property plant and equipment net Note 494.9 452.3

Goodwill Note 128.7 147.8

Intangible assets net Note 70.2 79.6

Deferred income taxes Note 10 123.4 65.3

Other assets 174.2 142.3

Total assets $3586.3 $3211.1

Liabilities and stockholders equity

Current liabilities

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt Note 23.0 7.2

Accounts payable trade and other 495.9 405.6

Advance payments and progress billings 770.3 665.3

Accrued payroll
102.4 88.8

Fair value of derivative financial instruments Note 14 444.4 106.9

Income taxes payable
56.0

Current portion of accrued pension and other postretirement benefits Note 11 20.8 15.1

Deferred income taxes Note 10 0.1 35.9

Other current liabilities 102.9 121.9

Liabilities of discontinued operations Note 2.7 340.2

Total current liabilities 1962.5 1842.9

Long-term debt less current portion Note 472.0 112.2

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits less current portion Note 11 182.1 50.4

Other liabilities 264.9 166.4

Related party note payable Note 16 9.9

Minority interests in consolidated companies 8.3 7.6

Commitments and contingent liabilities Note 18
Stockholders equity Note 13
Preferred stock $0.01 par value 12.0 shares authorized no shares issued in 2008 or

2007

Common stock $0.01 par value 195.0 shares authorized in 2008 and 2007 143.2 shares

issued in 2008 and 2007 124.9 and 129.3 shares outstanding in 2008 and 2007

respectively
1.4 1.4

Common stock held in employee benefit trust at cost 0.1 and 0.2 shares in 2008 and

2007 respectively 6.3 5.4
Common stock held in treasury at cost 18.1 and 13.7 shares in 2008 and 2007

respectively 706.0 422.7

Capital in excess of par value of common stock 728.7 724.0

Retained earnings 1087.1 771.6

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 408.4 47.2

Total stockholders equity 696.5 1021.7

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $3586.3 $3211.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In millions

Cash provided required by operating activities

Net income

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes

Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile income to cash provided required by operating activities

of continuing operations

Depreciation

Amortization

Net gain loss on disposal of assets

Employee benefit plan costs

Deferred income tax provision

Unrealized loss gain on derivative instruments

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effects of acquisitions
Trade receivables net

Inventories

Accounts payable trade and other

Advance payments and progress billings

Other assets and liabilities net

Income taxes payable

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits net

Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations

Net cash provided required by discontinued operationsoperating

Cash provided by operating activities

Cash provided required by investing activities

Capital expenditures

Acquisitions minority ownership positions and other investing

Proceeds from disposal of assets

Cash required by investing activities of continuing operations

Cash provided required by discontinued operations net of cash soldinvesting
______

Cash required by investing activities

Cash provided required by financing activities

Net increase in short-term debt

Net increase decrease in commercial paper

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Purchase of treasury stock

Excess tax benefits

Settlement of taxes withheld on equity compensation awards

Proceeds on spin-off of JBT Corporation and affiliates

Other

Cash provided required by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest net of interest capitalized

Cash paid for income taxes net of refunds received

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

361.3 302.8 276.3

2Lfl 11Q\
..-1

352.9 260.6 162.5

57.7

14.9

0.1

57.0

63.4

8.8

7.6

46.9

14.9

2.0
56.5

5.5

30.9
6.1

36.9

11.0

0.1
47.6

36.6

9.0

9.3

170.9
114.3

37.5

69.7

18.2
17.2
47.7

51.7

109.7

161.4

322.7 21.9

77.1 25.6
135.6 44.3

207.6 268.0

96.5 96.3
48.2 19.5

99.4 46.6

261.7 542.8

11.1 41.1

250.6 583.9

165.0 179.6 115.6
121.3 64.4 9.5

3.4 63.0 2.9

282.9 181.0 122.2
4.7 12.1 26.4

287.6 193.1 95.8

14.5 0.8 2.3

51.0 103.0

405.9

202.2 40.4
4.8 19.2 26.7

324.0 287.4 142.5
24.0 20.6 17.9

17.5 8.7 5.0
196.2

0.2 0.9 0.8

252T 355.6 141.8

5.1 14.8 2.8

210.6 50.0 73.4
129.5 79.5 152.9

340.1 129.5 79.5

9.4 17.5 14.8

132.3 93.5 52.9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

In millions

Balance at December 31 2005

Net Income

Issuance of common stock

Excess tax benefits on stock-based

payment arrangements

Taxes withheld on issuance of stock-

based awards

Purchases of treasury stock Note 13

Reissuances of treasury stock

Note 13

Net purchases of common stock for

employee benefit trust

Stock-based compensation Note 12

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Net deferral of hedging gains net of

income taxes of $4.6 Note 14

Minimum pension liability adjustment

net of income taxes of $7.8

Adjustment for adoption of SFAS

No 158 net of income taxes of

$34.2 Note 11

Other

Balance at December 31 2006

Net income

Issuance of common stock

Excess tax benefits on stock-based

payment arrangements

Taxes withheld on issuance of stock-

based awards

Purchases of treasury stock Note 13

Reissuances of treasury stock

Note 13

Net purchases of common stock for

employee benefit trust

Stock-based compensation Note 12

Stock split

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Net deferral of hedging gains net of

income taxes of $9.6 Note 14

Change in pension and other

postretirement benefit losses net of

income taxes of $0.8 Note 11

Other

17.9 17.9

5.0 5.0
142.5

0.9
20.6 20.6

35.7 35.7 35.7

7.8 7.8 7.8

24.8 24.8 24.8

72.0 72.0

2.9 2.9

$728.4 $469.5 $112.2 886.0

302.8 302.8

19.2 19.2

20.6 20.6

8.7 8.7

287.4

60.6 60.6

0.9 0.9
25.5 25.5

0.7

53.7 53.7 53.7

13.3 13.3 13.3

2.0 2.0 2.0
0.3 0.7 0.4

______

$367.8

Common

stock held in Capital in Accumulated

treasury and excess of par other

Common employee value of Retained comprehensive

stock benefit trust common stock earnings income loss

0.7 $681.6

26.7

$193.2

276.3

67.5

142.5

108 .5

Comprehensive
Total income loss

699.5

276.3 $276.3

26.7

10.5 10.5

0.9

0.7 $200.4

$344.6

$302.8

287.4

0.7

Balance at December 31 2007 $1.4 $428.1 $724.0 $771.6 47.2 $1021.7
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Common
stock held in Capital in Accumulated

treasury and excess of par other

Common employee value of Retained comprehensive Comprehensive
In millions stock benefit trust common stock earnings income loss Total income loss

Balance at December 31 2007 1.4 $428.l $724.0 771.6 47.2 $1021.7

Net income 361.3 361.3 361.3

Issuance of common stock 4.8 4.8

Excess tax benefits on stock-based

payment arrangements 24.0 24.0

Taxes withheld on issuance of stock-

based awards 17.5 17.5
Purchases of treasury stock

Note 13 324.0 324.0
Reissuances of treasury stock

Note 13 40.7 40.7

Net purchases of common stock for

employee benefit trust 1.5 3.2 1.7

Stock-based compensation

Note 12 30.2 30.2

Foreign currency translation

adjustment 139.1 139.1 139.1

Net deferral of hedging gains net of

income taxes of $64.8 Note 13 110.2 110.2 110.2

Change in pension and other

postretirement benefit losses net of

income taxes of $77.7 Note II 137.9 137.9 137.9

Changes in investments net of income

taxes of $0.8 Note 13 1.9 1.9 1.9
Spin-off ofJBT 0.6 0.7 46.1 27.9 16.9
Other 0.3 0.3

27.8

Balance at December 31 2008 $1.4 $712.3 $728.7 $1087.1 $408.4 696.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentationFMC Technologies Inc and consolidated subsidiaries FMC Technologies or we
designs manufactures and services sophisticated machinery and systems for our customers through our business

segments Energy Production Systems and Energy Processing Systems Our consolidated financial statements

have been prepared in United States dollars and in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP

On July 18 2007 we announced that our Board of Directors approved two-for-one stock split in the form of

stock dividend payable on August 31 2007 to shareholders of record as of August 17 2007 At August 31 2007

an adjustment was made to reclassify an amount from capital in excess of par value to common stock to account

for the par
value of the common stock issued as stock dividend This adjustment had no overall effect on

equity We have revised the historical common share and per common share information in this report to reflect

the effects of the stock split

In October 2007 we announced the intention to spin-off 100% of our FoodTech and Airport Systems businesses

On July 12 2008 our Board of Directors approved the spin-off of the businesses to our shareholders The

spin-off was accomplished on July 31 2008 through tax-free dividend of all outstanding shares of John Bean

Technologies Corporation JBT which is now an independent public company traded on the New York Stock

Exchange symbol JBT The results of JBT have been reported as discontinued operations for all periods

presented

Use of estimatesThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and

expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates We base our estimates on

historical experience and on other assumptions that we believe to be relevant under the circumstances In

particular judgment is used in areas such as revenue recognition using the percentage of completion method of

accounting making estimates associated with the valuation of inventory and income tax assets and accounting

for retirement benefits and contingencies

Principles of consolidationThe consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FMC Technologies

and its majority-owned subsidiaries and affiliates Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in

consolidation

ReclassiflcationsCertain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current years

presentation We reclassified unrealized gains related to unexecuted sales contracts of $7.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 from cost of sales to revenue on the consolidated statements of income The unrealized

gains in revenue are presented as other revenue in the business segment disclosure We reclassified net

discontinued gains on the disposal of assets of $1.1 million for the year ended December 31 2006 from cost of

sales to other income expense net on the consolidated statements of income

Correction of an immaterial errorWe have corrected an immaterial error in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows for the
years

ended December 31 2007 and 2006 by adjusting cash paid from

operating activities to financing activities The correction relates to the minimum tax withholding paid to taxing

authorities on behalf of employees for share-based compensation awards that is required to be classified as

financing activity in the statement of cash flows The correction increased cash provided by operating activities

for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 by $8.7 million and $5.0 million respectively with an

offsetting decrease of $8.7 million and $5.0 million respectively in cash required by financing activities The
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correction of error does not impact the net change in cash and cash equivalents and is not material to our

previously reported Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Revenue recognitionRevenue from equipment sales is recognized either upon transfer of title to the customer

which is upon shipment or when customer-specific acceptance requirements are met or under the percentage of

completion method Service revenue is recognized as the service is provided We record our sales net of any

value added sales or use tax

The percentage of completion method of accounting is used for construction-type manufacturing and assembly

projects that involve significant design and engineering effort in order to satisfy detailed customer-supplied

specifications Under the percentage of completion method revenue is recognized as work
progresses on each

contract We primarily apply the ratio of costs incurred to date to total estimated contract costs at completion to

measure this ratio If it is not possible to form reliable estimate of progress toward completion no revenues or

costs are recognized until the project is complete or substantially complete Any expected losses on construction-

type contracts in progress are charged to earnings in total in the period the losses are identified

Modifications to construction-type contracts referred to as change orders effectively change the provisions of

the original contract and may for example alter the specifications or design method or manner of performance

equipment materials sites and/or period for completion of the work If change order represents firm price

commitment from customer we account for the revised estimate as if it had been included in the original

estimate effectively recognizing the pro rata impact of the new estimate on our calculation of progress toward

completion in the period in which the firm commitment is received If change order is unpriced we include

the costs of contract performance in our calculation of progress toward completion in the period in which the

costs are incurred or become probable and when it is determined that the revenue is probable of recovery we
include the change order revenue limited to the costs incurred to date related to the change order in our

calculation of progress toward completion Margin is not recorded on unpriced change orders unless realization is

assured beyond reasonable doubt The assessment of realization may be based upon our previous experience

with the customer or based upon our receipt of firm price commitment from the customer

Progress billings generally are issued contingent on completion of certain phases of the work as stipulated in the

contract Revenue in excess of progress billings on contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion

method amounted to $150.6 million and $163.4 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively These

unbilled receivables are reported in trade receivables on the consolidated balance sheets Progress billings and

cash collections in excess of revenue recognized on contract are classified as advance payments and progress

billings within current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets

Cash equivalentsWe consider investments in all highly-liquid debt instruments with original maturities of

three months or less to be cash equivalents

Trade receivablesWe provide an allowance for doubtful accounts on trade receivables equal to the estimated

uncollectible amounts This estimate is based on historical collection experience and specific review of each

customers trade receivable balance

InventoriesInventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value Inventory costs include those

costs directly attributable to products including all manufacturing overhead but excluding costs to distribute

Cost is determined on the last-in first-out LIFO basis for all significant domestic inventories except certain

inventories relating to construction-type contracts which are stated at the actual production cost incurred to date

reduced by the portion of these costs identified with revenue recognized The first-in first-out FIFO method

is used to determine the cost for all other inventories
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Impairment of long-lived and intangible assetsLong-lived assets including property plant and equipment

identifiable intangible assets being amortized and capitalized software costs are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the long-lived asset may not be

recoverable The carrying amount of long-lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the

undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset If it is determined

that an impainnent loss has occurred the loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the

long-lived asset exceeds its fair value

Long-lived assets held for sale are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value less cost to sell

InvestmentsInvestments in the common stock of affiliated companies in which our ownership is between 20%

and 50% and in which we exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies but do not have

effective control are accounted for using the equity method of accounting On December 26 2008 we acquired

45% interest in Schilling for total purchase price of up to $116.0 million less certain transaction expenses The

total purchase price is subject to potential post-closing adjustments which will not increase the total purchase

price The Securities Purchase Agreement between FMC Technologies and Schilling provided that FMC

Technologies directly withhold $10.0 million of the sales proceeds pending the satisfactory completion of the

audit of Schillings 2008 financial statements The $10.0 million withheld from the total purchase price is

reported in other current liabilities We paid cash consideration of approximately $106.0 million upon closing of

the transaction We account for the investment using the equity method The carrying value of the investment at

December 31 2008 was $116.1 million and is reported in the Energy Production segment We are in the process

of evaluating whether there is difference between the carrying amount of the investment and the amount of

underlying equity in net assets and anticipate the assessment to be complete during the first quarter of 2009

We determine the appropriate classification of investments in marketable equity securities at the time of purchase

and re-evaluate such designation as of each subsequent reporting date Securities classified as available-for-sale

are carried at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses on these securities recognized in accumulated

other comprehensive income loss net of related income tax Available-for-sale securities totaled $13.3 million

at December 31 2008

Securities classified as trading securities are carried at fair value with gains and losses on these securities

recognized through other income expense net Trading securities are comprised primarily of marketable equity

mutual funds that approximate portion of our liability under our Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan

Trading securities totaled approximately $21.8 million and $33.4 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

We assess any
declines in the value of individual investments to determine whether the decline is other-than-

temporary and thus the investment is impaired

Property plant and equipmentProperty plant and equipment is recorded at cost Depreciation for financial

reporting purposes is provided principally on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets

land improvements20 to 35 years buildings20 to 50 years and machinery and equipment3 to 20 years

Gains and losses are reflected in income upon the sale or retirement of assets Expenditures that extend the useful

lives of property plant and equipment are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated new remaining life of

the asset

Capitalized software costsOther assets include the capitalized cost of internal use software including Internet

web sites The assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and totaled $25.3 million and $18.8

million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively These software costs include significant purchases of
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software and internal and external costs incurred during the application development stage of software projects

These costs are amortized on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets For internal use

software the useful lives range from three to ten years For Internet web site costs the estimated useful lives do

not exceed three years

Goodwill and other intangible assetsGoodwill is not subject to amortization but is tested for impairment on an

annual basis or more frequently if impairment indicators arise under the provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets We have established

October as the date of our annual test for impairment of goodwill Impairment losses are calculated at the

reporting unit level and represent the excess of the carrying value of reporting unit goodwill over its implied fair

value The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by two-step process The first compares the fair value

of the reporting unit measured as the present value of expected future cash flows to its carrying amount If the

fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount second step is performed In this step the fair

value of the reporting unit is allocated to its assets and liabilities to determine the implied fair value of goodwill

which is used to measure the impairment loss We have not recognized any impairment for the years ended

December 31 2008 or 2007 as the fair values of our reporting units with goodwill balances exceed our carrying

amounts

Our acquired intangible assets are being amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

which generally range from to 40 years None of our acquired intangible assets have indefinite lives

Reserve for discontinued operationsThis reserve reflects liabilities of our disposed businesses The balance

includes reserves related to personal injury and product liability claims associated with our discontinued

operations as well as other unpaid employee-related and transaction costs resulting from the disposals Personal

injury and product liability claims reserves are recorded based on an actuarially-determined estimate of liabilities

for both reported claims and incurred but unreported claims Adjustments to the reserve for discontinued

operations are included in results of discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of income The

reserve for discontinued operations which is recorded in other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance

sheets amounted to $0.3 million and $2.2 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Income taxesCurrent income taxes are provided on income reported for financial statement purposes adjusted

for transactions that do not enter into the computation of income taxes payable in the same year Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates for the expected future tax consequences of temporary

differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities valuation allowance is

established whenever management believes that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets may not be

realizable

Income taxes are not provided on our equity in undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries or affiliates when it

is managements intention that such earnings will remain invested in those companies Taxes are provided on

such earnings in the period in which the decision is made to repatriate the earnings

Stock-based employee compensationWe measure compensation cost on restricted stock awards based on the

market price at the grant date and the number of shares awarded The compensation cost for each award is

recognized ratably over the applicable service period after taking into account estimated forfeitures On

October 2005 we adopted the provisions of SFAS No 23R Share-Based Payment which modified our

recognition of share-based compensation by incorporating an estimate of forfeitures in the calculation of

current expense to record and ii adjusting the recognition period for new awards that accelerate vesting upon

retirement to reflect the lesser of the stated vesting period or the period until the employee becomes retirement

eligible
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Common stock held in employee benefit trustShares of our common stock are purchased by the plan

administrator of the FMC Technologies Inc Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan and placed in trust

owned by us Purchased shares are recorded at cost and classified as reduction of stockholders equity in the

consolidated balance sheets

Earnings per common share EPSBasic EPS is computed using the weighted-average number of common

shares outstanding Diluted EPS gives effect to the potential dilution of earnings which could have occurred if

additional shares were issued for stock option exercises and restricted stock under the treasury stock method The

treasury stock method assumes that proceeds that would be obtained upon exercise of common stock options and

issuance of restricted stock are used to buy back outstanding common stock at the
average market price during

the period

Foreign currencyFinancial statements of operations for which the U.S dollar is not the functional currency

and are located in non-highly inflationary countries are translated to the U.S dollar prior to consolidation Assets

and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date while income statement

accounts are translated at the average exchange rate for each period For these operations translation gains and

losses are recorded as component of accumulated other comprehensive income loss in stockholders equity

until the foreign entity is sold or liquidated For operations in highly inflationary countries and where the local

currency is not the functional currency inventories property plant and equipment and other non-current assets

are converted to U.S dollars at historical exchange rates and all gains or losses from conversion are included in

net income Foreign currency effects on cash cash equivalents and debt in hyperinflationary economies are

included in interest income or expense

Derivative financial instrumentsDerivatives are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value

with classification as current or non-current based upon the maturity of the derivative instrument Changes in the

fair value of derivative instruments are recorded in current earnings or deferred in accumulated other

comprehensive income loss depending on the type of hedging transaction and whether derivative is

designated as and is effective as hedge

Hedge accounting is only applied when the derivative is deemed to be highly effective at offsetting changes in

anticipated cash flows of the hedged item or transaction Changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated

as cash flow hedges are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income loss until the underlying

transactions are recognized in earnings At such time related deferred hedging gains or losses are also recorded in

operating earnings on the same line as the hedged item Effectiveness is assessed at the inception of the hedge

and on quarterly basis Effectiveness of forward contract cash flow hedges are assessed based solely on changes

in fair value attributable to the change in the spot rate The change in the fair value of the contract related to the

change in forward rates is excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness Changes in this excluded

component of the derivative instrument along with any ineffectiveness identified are recorded in operating

earnings as incurred We document our risk management strategy and hedge effectiveness at the inception of and

during the term of each hedge We also use forward contracts to hedge foreign currency assets and liabilities

These contracts are not designated as hedges therefore the changes in fair value of these contracts are

recognized in other income expense net as they occur and offset gains or losses on the remeasurement of the

related asset or liability

Cash flows from derivative contracts are reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows in the same

categories as the cash flows from the underlying transactions

Recently issued accounting pronouncementsIn December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business
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Combinations SFAS No 14lR replacing SFAS No 141 SFAS No 141R changes or clarifies the

acquisition method of accounting for acquired contingencies transaction costs step acquisitions restructuring

costs and other major areas affecting how the acquirer recognizes and measures the assets acquired the liabilities

assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree In addition this pronouncement amends previous

interpretations of intangible asset accounting by requiring the capitalization of in-process research and

development and proscribing impacts to current income tax expense rather than reduction to goodwill for

changes in deferred tax benefits related to business combination SFAS No 141R will be applied prospectively

for business combinations occurring after December 31 2008

In December 2007 the FASB issued SEAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SEAS No 160 will standardize the accounting for and reporting of

minority interests in the financial statements which will be presented as noncontrolling interests and classified as

component of equity In addition statements of operations will report consolidated net income before an

allocation to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest This new presentation will have an impact on the

basic financial statements as well as the disclosures to clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the

parent and the interests of the noncontrolling interests SEAS No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2008 and is effective for us at January 2009 We have not yet determined the impact if any that

the adoption of SFAS No 160 will have on our results of operations or financial position

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activitiesan amendnient of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS No 161 requires enhanced disclosures regarding

derivative instruments and hedging activities enabling better understanding of their effects on an entitys

financial position financial performance and cash flows SEAS No 161 is effective for financial statements

issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 and is effective for us at

January 2009

Management believes the impact of other recently issued accounting standards which are not yet effective will

not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption

NOTE EARNINGS PER SHARE EPS
The following schedule is reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPS computations

Year Ended December 31

In millions except per share data 2008 2007 2006

Basic earnings per
share

Income from continuing operations $352.9 $260.6 $162.5

Weighted average
number of shares outstanding

127.8 131.3 137.0

Basic earnings per
share from continuing operations

2.76 1.98 1.19

Diluted earnings per
share

Income from continuing operations $352.9 $260.6 $162.5

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 127.8 131.3 137.0

Effect of dilutive securities

Options on common stock 0.5 1.0 1.7

Restricted stock 1.4 1.5 1.6

Total shares and dilutive securities 129.7 133.8 140.3

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 2.72 1.95 1.16
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NOTE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

We report discontinued operations in accordance with the guidance of SFAS No 144 Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets Accordingly we report businesses or asset groups as

discontinued operations when we commit to plan to divest the business or asset group and the sale of the

business or asset group is deemed probable within the next 12 months

In October 2007 we announced the intention to spin-off 100% of our FoodTech and Airport Systems businesses

On July 12 2008 our Board of Directors approved the spin-off of the businesses to our shareholders The

spin-off was accomplished on July 31 2008 through tax-free dividend to our shareholders We distributed

0.2 16 shares of JBT common stock for every share of our stock outstanding as of the close of business on

July 22 2008 We did not retain any shares of JBT common stock JBT is now an independent public company

traded on the New York Stock Exchange symbol JBT

Prior to the spin-off we received necessary regulatory approvals including private letter ruling from the

Internal Revenue Service IRS regarding the tax-free status of the transaction for U.S federal income tax

purposes and declaration of effectiveness from the Securities and Exchange Commission for JBTs registration

statement on Form 10 The distribution resulted in net decrease in our stockholders equity of $16.9 million

which primarily represents $46.1 million decrease in retained earnings partially offset by $27.9 million

decrease in accumulated other comprehensive loss

In connection with this transaction JBT distributed $157.8 million to us which was used to repurchase stock and

reduce our outstanding debt pursuant to certain terms of the IRS private letter ruling JBT made an additional

cash distribution to FMC Technologies Inc of $38.4 million in October 2008 pursuant to certain terms of the

Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into by FMC Technologies and JBT This amount is reported in

cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2008 However as required under

the terms of the IRS private letter ruling this amount is currently held in segregated account and must be used

to repurchase FMC Technologies stock no later than July 31 2009

At the time of the spin-off of JBT all outstanding stock options to purchase our common stock and all restricted

stock shares awarded in 2007 and held by employees of JBT were cancelled Restricted stock shares awarded

prior to 2007 and held by employees of JBT were maintained by us and will vest in 2009 At the completion of

the spin-off of JBT outstanding stock options to purchase our common stock and outstanding restricted stock

units held by our directors and employees who remained with us were adjusted to preserve the intrinsic value of

the shares held prior to the spin-off

During 2007 we sold two units from our FoodTech segment one of which generated an after-tax gain of $3.1

million

During 2006 we sold our Floating Systems subsidiary for $54.4 million Floating Systems supplied turret and

mooring systems riser systems and control and service buoys for broad
range of marine and subsea projects

We recorded gain on disposal of $34.8 million net of tax of $18.5 million Net assets disposed in the sale

included $1.7 million in goodwill With the sale of our Floating Systems subsidiary we have no continuing

involvement in floating production systems

The results of the businesses including the gains on disposition have been reported as discontinued operations

for all periods presented
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The consolidated statements of income include the following in discontinued operations

In millions 2008

Revenue $612.5

Income before income taxes 35.3

Income tax provision 26.9

Income from discontinued operations 8.4

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006

$997.2 $1002.6

66.3 163.8

24.1 50.0

_____
42.2 113.8

Income from discontinued operations in 2006 includes $1.9 million in income resulting from the resolution of

product liability claims related to our discontinued construction equipment group

The major classes of assets and liabilities of businesses reported as discontinued operations included in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets are shown below

In millions

Assets

Trade receivables net

Inventories

Property plant and equipment net

Other assets

Assets of discontinued operations

Liabilities

Accounts payable trade and other

Advance payments and progress billings

Other liabilities

Liabilities of discontinued operations

NOTE BUSINESS COMBINATION

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

$182.5

142.9

126.8

81.6

$533.8

$98.9

101.6

2.7 139.7

2.7 $340.2

In August 2003 we acquired 55% of CDS Engineering BV CDS and retained commitment to purchase the

remaining 45% in 2009 from the original CDS owners who are members of CDS management and therefore

related parties

In the first quarter of 2007 CDS issued 18000 shares to the minority interest shareholder of CDS subsidiary in

exchange for all of the minority interest outstanding of that subsidiary The minority interest holder of the

subsidiary was member of CDS management and was therefore related party
This transaction resulted in the

minority shareholder obtaining 9% interest in CDS and diluted the original CDS owners and our interest to

40.95% and 50.05% respectively

The agreement associated with this transaction required that we repurchase the CDS shares issued and therefore

we recorded the transaction as the purchase of minority interest by issuing redeemable shares in accordance with

EITF D-98 Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities The initial carrying amount of the

redeemable shares was $10.0 million and reflected the fair value of the shares issued in exchange for the

subsidiarys minority interest We recorded $3.1 million in intangibles $6.8 million in goodwill and $0.8 million
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in deferred tax liabilities in connection with the transaction During the fourth quarter of 2007 we converted the

redeemable securities into note payable in two installments scheduled for 2009 and 2011 Note 16 We agreed

to provide additional consideration in 2011 contingent upon earnings and continued employment The individual

voluntarily terminated employment during 2008 and no further consideration related to continued employment is

required Likewise we were released from the obligations associated with the note payable through its

replacement by an escrow agreement with scheduled payments totaling approximately $7.8 million to be made

in accordance with the original terms of the note payable The principal amount due to the individual is

appropriately recorded in current and long-term debt at December 31 2008

In the second quarter of 2007 we amended the 2003 Sales and Purchase Agreement with the original CDS

owners to allow for the purchase of their 40.95% interest immediately for cash of $40.0 million plus payment

in 2009 consisting of fixed amount of 11.2 million Euros and variable component based on CDS earnings

During the fourth quarter of 2007 we settled both the fixed and variable commitments with payment of

13.5 million Euros We recorded $35.6 million in intangible assets $27.6 million in goodwill and $4.3 million in

deferred tax liabilities These transactions accelerated our planned buyout of the minority shareholders and

allowed us to record 100% of CDS earnings beginning April 2007 CDS has been consolidated subsidiary

reported in the Energy Production Systems segment since our initial investment in 2003

NOTE INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Raw materials 124.8 134.8

Work in process
84.7 87.7

Finished goods 472.2 424.5

Gross inventories before LIFO reserves and valuation adjustments 681.7 647.0

LIFO reserves and valuation adjustments 122.4 113.8

Inventory net 559.3 533.2

Net inventories accounted for under the LIFO method totaled $154.3 million and $126.8 million at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively The current replacement costs of LIFO inventories exceeded their recorded values

by $78.7 million and $71.8 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively There were no reductions of

LIFO inventory in 2008 2007 or 2006

NOTE PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property plant and equipment consisted of the following

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Land and land improvements 19.7 15.7

Buildings 150.7 136.0

Machinery and equipment 551.0 511.2

Construction in process 105.7 138.6

827.1 801.5

Accumulated depreciation 332.2 349.2

Property plant and equipment net 494.9 452.3
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Depreciation expense was $57.7 million $46.9 million and $36.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The amount of interest cost capitalized was $3.8 million $5.0 million and $2.7 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

NOTE GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill by business segment was as follows

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Energy Production Systems $114.7 $133.7

Energy Processing Systems 14.0 14.1

Total goodwill $128.7 $147.8

In 2007 we recorded $34.4 million in goodwill in connection with our purchases of minority interests in CDS
and $3.3 million related to an acquisition in the Energy Processing Systems segment Certain of our goodwill

balances are subject to foreign currency translation adjustments Fluctuations in exchange rates contributed to the

$19.1 million decrease in the total goodwill balance for 2008

Intangible assetsThe components of intangible assets were as follows

December

2008 2007

Gross Gross

carrying Accumulated carrying Accumulated

In millions amount amortization amount amortization

Customer lists $34.3 6.6 $35.1 4.2

Patents and acquired technology 48.1 10.2 49.9 7.1

Trademarks 6.6 2.6 6.8 2.2

Other 2AJ 1.4 4.1

Total intangible assets $91.0 $20.8 $95.9 $16.3

Additions to our intangible assets during 2007 included assets associated with our purchases of minority interests

in CDS There were no additions to our intangible assets during 2008

All of our acquired identifiable intangible assets are subject to amortization and where applicable foreign

currency translation adjustments We recorded $7.2 million $6.5 million and $2.1 million in amortization

expense related to acquired intangible assets during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively In the fourth quarter of 2007 management revised their estimate of the remaining lives of the

intangible assets related to the acquisition of CDS Therefore we effected change in estimate to reduce the

remaining life for customer lists from 25 years to 15 years for patents and acquired technology from 20 years to

15 years and for trademarks from 20 years to 10 years We accounted for this change in estimate in the fourth

quarter of 2007 and the impact ws not material Duqng the years 2009 through 2013 annual amortization

expense expected to be as fpjlows $5.9 million in 2009 $5.9 million in 2010 $5.5 million in 2011 $5.3

million in 2012 and $5.0 million in 2013
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NOTE SALE LEASEBACK TRANSACTION

In March 2007 we sold and leased back property in Houston Texas consisting of land corporate offices and

production facilities primarily related to the Energy Production Systems segment We received proceeds of $58.1

million in connection with the sale The carrying value of the property sold was $20.3 million We accounted for

the transaction as sale leaseback resulting in first quarter 2007 recognition of $1.3 million of the $37.4

million gain on the transaction and ii the deferral of the remaining $36.1 million of the gain which will be

amortized to rent expense over noncancellable ten-year lease term The deferred gain is presented in other

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet The lease expires in 2022 and provides for two 5-year optional

extensions as well as the option to terminate the lease in 2017 subject to $3.3 million fee Annual rent of $4.2

million escalates 2% per year The lease has been recorded as an operating lease

NOTE DEBT

In December 2007 we entered into $600 million five-year revolving credit agreement maturing in December

2012 with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent Borrowings under the credit agreement accrue

interest at rate equal to at our option either base rate determined by reference to the higher of the

agents prime rate and the federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1% or an interest rate of 45 basis points above the

London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR The margin over LIBOR is variable and is determined based on our

debt rating Among other restrictions the terms of the credit agreement include negative covenants related to

liens and financial covenant related to the debt to earnings ratio We are in compliance with all restrictive

covenants as of December 31 2008

Available capacity under the credit facility is reduced by outstanding letters of credit associated with the facility

which totaled $26.9 million as of December 31 2008 and any outstanding commercial paper Unused capacity

under the credit facility at December 31 2008 totaled $114.1 million

We have $5 million short-term uncommitted credit facility maturing on December 31 2009 There were no

borrowings under the facility at December 31 2008

Commercial paperUnder our commercial
paper program we have the ability to access $500.0 million of short-

term financing through our commercial
paper

dealers subject to the limit of unused capacity of the $600 million

five-year revolving credit facility Commercial
paper borrowings are issued at market interest rates

Properly fInancingIn September 2004 we entered into agreements for the sale and leaseback of an office

building having net book value of $8.5 million Under the terms of the agreement the building was sold for

$9.7 million in net proceeds and leased back under 10-year lease We have subleased this property to third

party under lease agreement that is being accounted for as an operating lease We have accounted for the

transaction as financing transaction and are amortizing the related obligation using an effective annual interest

rate of 5.37%

Uncommitted creditWe have uncommitted credit lines at many of our international subsidiaries for immaterial

amounts We utilize these facilities to provide more efficient daily source of liquidity The effective interest

rates depend upon the local national market
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Short-tern debt and current portion of long-term debtShort-term debt and current portion of long-term debt

consisted of the following

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Property financing 0.4 0.4

Foreign uncommitted credit facilities 19.1 6.8

Other

Total short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt $23.0 $7.2

Long-term debtLong-term debt consisted of the following

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Revolving credit facilities $407.0

Commercial paper 52.0 103.0

Property financing 8.5 8.9

Other 8.4 0.7

Total long-term debt 475.9 112.6

Less current portion 3.9 0.4

Long-term debt less current portion $472.0 $112.2

Committed credit available under our five-year revolving credit facility maturing in 2012 provides the

ability to refinance our commercial paper obligations on long-term basis Therefore at December 31 2008

as we have both the ability and intent to refinance these obligations on long-term basis our commercial

paper borrowings were classified as long-term on the consolidated balance sheet Commercial paper

borrowings as of December 31 2008 had an average interest rate of 1.68%

Maturities of total long-term debt as of December 31 2008 are payable as follows $3.9 million in 2009 $0.4

million in 2010 $4.8 million in 2011 $459.5 million in 2012 $0.6 million in 2013 and $6.7 million thereafter

Interest rate swapsDuring 2007 we held interest rate swaps related to interest payments on $150.0 million of

our variable rate borrowings on our $370 million revolving credit facility The effect of these interest rate swaps
which were acquired in December 2005 was to fix the effective annual interest rate of these variable rate

borrowings at 5.25% The swaps were accounted for as cash flow hedges In December 2007 the variable rate

borrowings on the $370 million revolving credit facility were repaid in full and replaced with variable rate

commercial paper The swaps were terminated in January 2008 with no material earnings impact

The deferred gain from prior discontinued swap transaction in the amount of $4.6 million was included in

accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31 2006 and $1.0 million and $3.6 million of the gain

has been amortized during 2008 and 2007 respectively as interest expense on the underlying debt affected

earnings
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NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES

Domestic and foreign components of income before income taxes are shown below

In millions

Domestic

Foreign

Income before income taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

63.4 $104.2 40.5

441.5 290.9 184.7

$504.9 $395.1 $225.2

1.4

0.1
27.6

26.1

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006In millions

Current

Federal 19.7 46.5

State 0.8 3.9

Foreign
58.9 74.7

Total current 79.4 125.1

Non-Current 9.2 3.9

Deferred

Decrease increase in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 0.5 0.2 1.3

Other deferred tax expense benefit 63.9 5.3 47.9

Total deferred 63.4 5.5 36.6

Provision for income taxes $152.0 $134.5 62.7
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Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Deferred tax assets attributable to

Accrued
expenses 50.4 31.5

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 27.2 24.5

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 76.5 22.8

Stock-based compensation 26.6 22.9

Net operating loss carryforwards 11.0 12.6

Inventories 17.1 15.8

Foreign Exchange 52.2 11.1

Other 3.4 1.8

Deferred tax assets 264.4 143.0

Valuation allowance 2.0 2.5

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 262.4 140.5

Deferred tax liabilities attributable to

Revenue in excess of billings on contracts accounted for under the percentage of

completion method 87.7 63.8

Property plant and equipment goodwill and other assets 51.4 47.3

Deferred tax liabilities 139.1 111.1

Net deferred tax assets $123.3 29.4

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the carrying amount of net deferred tax assets and the related valuation

allowance included the impact of foreign currency translation adjustments Included in our deferred tax assets at

December 31 2008 are U.S foreign tax credit carryforwards of $27.2 million which if not utilized will begin to

expire after 2014 Realization of these deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of sufficient U.S
taxable income prior to the above date Based on long-term forecasts of operating results management believes

that it is more likely than not that domestic earnings over the forecast period will result in sufficient U.S taxable

income to fully realize these deferred tax assets In its analysis management has considered the effect of foreign

deemed dividends and other expected adjustments to domestic earnings that are required in determining U.S

taxable income Foreign earnings taxable to us as dividends including deemed dividends for U.S tax purposes
were $134.3 million $62.2 million and $16.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Also included in

deferred tax assets are tax benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards attributable to foreign entities If

not utilized these net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2009 Management believes it is more

likely than not that we will not be able to utilize certain of these operating loss carryforwards before expiration

therefore we have established valuation allowance against the related deferred tax assets
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By country current and non-current deferred income taxes included in our consolidated balance sheet at

December 31 2008 were as follows

December 31 2008

Current asset Non-current asset

In millions liability liability Total

United States 58.4 $143.1 $201.5

Norway 75.8 10.6 65.2

Brazil 12.7 21.1 8.4

Other foreign 4.6 9.2 4.6

Net deferred tax assets liabilities 0.1 $123.4 $123.3

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Federal
State Accrued Gross Deferred

and Interest Unrecognized Income

Foreign and Income Tax Tax

In millions Tax Penalties Benefits Benefits Net

Balance at January 2008 $18.9 3.5 $22.4 $2.1 $20.3

Additions for tax positions related to the current year

Additions for tax positions related to prior years
9.9 3.1 13.0 1.3 11.7

Reductions for tax positions due to settlements

Reductions due to lapse of the statute of limitations

Other reductions for tax positions related to prior years 0.8 0.3 1.1 0.1 1.0

Balance at December 31 2008 28.0 6.3 34.3 3.3 31.0

Less tax positions related to temporary differences 1.3 1.3 1.3

Tax positions that if recognized would impact the effective

tax rate as of December 31 2008 $26.7 $6.3 $33.0 $3.3 $29.7

It is our policy to classify interest expense and penalties recognized on underpayments of income taxes as income

tax expense The gross amounts of interest expense and penalties included in unrecognized tax benefits as of

January and December 31 2008 are reflected in the table above

It is reasonably possible that within twelve months unrecognized tax benefits related to certain tax reporting

positions taken in prior periods could decrease by up to $4.7 million due to either the expiration of the statute of

limitations in certain jurisdictions or the resolution of current income tax examinations or both

Tax years after 1999 2004 and 2002 remain subject to examination in Norway Brazil and the United States

respectively
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The effective income tax rate was different from the statutory U.S federal income tax rate due to the following

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Statutory U.S federal income tax rate 35% 35% 35%
Net difference resulting from

Foreign earnings subject to different tax rates

Tax on foreign intercompany dividends and deemed dividends for tax purposes

Net change in unrecognized tax benefits

Net change in valuation allowance

Other

Total difference

Effective income tax rate 30% 34%

The 2006 provision for income taxes included the reversal of $12.2 million valuation allowance on deferred tax

assets related to our Brazilian operations Profitability and updated projections for future taxable income in Brazil

caused us to change our assessment of the recoverability of deferred tax assets and reverse the valuation

allowance established in prior years

U.S income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries The cumulative

balance of these undistributed earnings was $571.9 million at December 31 2008 It is not practicable to

determine the amount of applicable taxes that would be incurred if any of these earnings were repatriated

NOTE 11 PENSIONS AND POSTRETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

We have funded and unfunded defined benefit pension plans that together cover substantially all of our U.S

employees The plans provide defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary Foreign-based

employees are eligible to participate in FMC Technologies-sponsored or government-sponsored benefit plans to

which we contribute Several of the foreign defined benefit pension plans sponsored by us provide for employee

contributions the remaining plans are noncontributory

We have other postretirement benefit plans covering substantially all of our U.S employees who were hired prior

to January 2003 The postretirement health care plans are contributory the postretirement life insurance plans

are noncontributory

We have adopted the provisions of SFAS No 87 Employers Accounting for Pensions as amended by SFAS
No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an amendment of

FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R SFAS No 158 requires recognition of the funded status of

defined benefit postretirement plans as an asset or liability in the consolidated balance sheet and to recognize

changes in that funded status in comprehensive income in the
year in which the changes occur SFAS No 158

also requires measurement of plans assets and its obligations that determine its funded status as of the date of

the consolidated balance sheet We have applied this guidance to our domestic pension and other postretirement

benefit plans as well as for many of our non-U.S plans including those covering employees in the United

Kingdom Norway Germany France Sweden and Canada In 2007 we included our defined benefit plans

covering employees in Belgium to the pension disclosures The opening projected benefit obligation and plan

assets are reflected in the plan transition caption of the funded status reconciliation Pension expense measured in

compliance with SFAS No 87 for the other non-U.S pension plans is not materially different from the locally

reported pension expense
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The funded status of our U.S qualified and nonqualified pension plans certain foreign pension plans and U.S

postretirement health care and life insurance benefit plans together with the associated balances recognized in

our consolidated financial statements as of December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007 2008 2007

Other

postretirement

In millions Pensions benefits

Accumulated benefit obligation 547.1 $755.7

Projected benefit obligation at January 911.7 $841.6 19.7 20.5

Transfer of liability to JBT as result of the spinoff 219.6 6.4
Service cost 33.5 31.1 0.1

Interest cost 38.9 48.9 0.7 1.2

Actuarial gain loss 17.6 12.0 1.7 0.4
Amendments 0.6 0.1

Settlement loss 5.4

Plan transition 13.2

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 86.4 15.1

Plan participants contributions 2.1 3.3 0.9

Benefits paid 33.8 30.1 1.4 2.6

Projected benefit obligation at December 31 669.4 911.7 11.0 19.7

Fair value of plan assets at January 841.8 769.3

Transfer of assets to JBT as result of the spinoff 185.0

Actual return on plan assets 166.5 34.9

Company contributions 91.7 43.2 1.4 1.7

Plan transition 7.8

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 73.8 13.4

Plan participants contributions 2.1 3.3 0.9

Benefits paid 33.8 30.1 1.4 2.6

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 476.5 841.8

Funded status of the plans liability at December 31 192.9 69.9 $ll.0 $l9.7

Other noncurrent assets 1.0 13.4

Current portion of accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 20.1 13.6 0.7 1.5
Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits net of current portion 171.8 39.5 10.3 10.9

Net amount recognized in the balance sheet for discontinued operations -.-- 30.2 7.3

Funded status recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at December

2008 and 2007 $192.9 $69.9 $11.0 $19.7

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Unrecognized actuarial gain loss 296.1 $128.7 0.7 0.2

Unrecognized prior service credit 1.7 2.2 5.4 11.8

Unrecognized transition asset 2.0 3.3

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss at December31 292.4 $123.2 $6.l $12.0

Plans with underfunded or non-funded projected benefit obligation

Aggregate projected benefit obligation 669.4 $184.9 $11.0 19.7

Aggregate fair value of plan assets 476.5 97.1

Plans with underfunded or non-funded accumulated benefit obligation

Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation 367.7 67.2

Aggregate fair value of plan assets 260.6 9.1
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The following table summarizes the components of net periodic benefit cost

Other

postretirement

Pensions benefits

In millions 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Components of net annual benefit cost

Service cost 33.5 31.1 25.2 0.1 $0.l
Interest cost 38.9 48.9 42.0 0.7 1.2 1.2

Expected return on plan assets 49.9 62.8 53.2
Settlement cost 8.1

Amortization of transition asset 0.6 0.6 0.6
Amortization of prior service cost credit 0.3 0.5 0.5 1.4 2.5 2.6
Amortization of net actuarial loss gain 3.7 9.5 10.2 0.1 0.1

Net annual benefit cost income 34.0 26.6 24.1 $0.7 $1.3 $l.4

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations

recognized in other comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss gain $174.1 8.0 $0.7 $0.7

Amortization of net actuarial loss 3.7 9.5 0.2

Prior service cost 0.9 0.6 4.4 0.1

Amortization of prior service cost credit 0.3 0.5 2.0 2.5

Amortization of transition asset 0.6 0.6

Total recognized in other comprehensive income .. 171.6 0.8 5.9 1.9

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and

other comprehensive income $205.6 25.8 $5.2 $0.6

The estimated net actuarial loss prior service cost credit and transition asset credit for the defined benefit

pension plans that will be .mortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost

over the next fiscal year are $15.5 million $0.2 million and $0.5 million respectively The estimated prior

service benefit for the other postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $1.3 million Prior service costs

and the unrecognized actuarial losses are amortized on straight-line basis over the average remaining service

period of employees eligible to receive benefits under the plan

Key assumptionsThe following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine the benefit obligations

Other

postretirement

Pensions benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007

Discount rate 5.92% 6.02% 6.10% 6.50%

Rate of compensation increase 4.04% 4.00%

The weighted average discount rate for pension expense dropped from 6.02% in 2007 to 5.92% in 2008 which

resulted from decrease in the discount rates used in determining the pension benefits principally in the U.S

plans The discount rate used for determining the U.K pension benefit obligations grew from 5.6 1% in 2007 to

5.95% in 2008 The discount rate used in determining U.S pension benefit obligations decreased from 6.50% in

2007 to 6.10% in 2008
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The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine net periodic benefit cost

Other

postretirement

Pensions benefits

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Discount rate 6.02% 5.62% 5.46% 6.50% 6.00% 5.80%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 3.85% 3.58%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.21% 8.46% 8.57%

Our estimate of expected rate of return on plan assets is based primarily on the historical performance of plan

assets current market conditions and long-term growth expectations

In 2008 we moved to fully insured postretirement medical plan in which premium costs are paid by the

employee The disclosed postretirement medical obligation included in other postretirement benefits reflects

flat dollar subsidy paid to retirees hired prior to 2003 that offsets employee premiums to the plan This subsidy

will not be indexed for inflation or expected healthcare cost increases

Plan assetsOur pension plan asset allocation by asset category was as follows

December 31

Percent of plan assets 2008 2007

Equity securities 69.6% 83.9%

Insurance contracts 12.3 11.5

Cash 3.1 3.1

Debt securities 12.4 0.3

Other 26 12

Total 100M% lOftO%

Our pension investment strategy emphasizes maximizing returns consistent with ensuring that sufficient assets

are available to meet liabilities and minimizing corporate cash contributions Investment managers are retained

to invest 100% of discretionary funds and are provided high level of freedom in asset allocation Targets

include exceeding relevant equity indices performing in the top quartile of all large U.S pension plans and

obtaining an absolute rate of return at least equal to the discount rate used to value plan liabilities

ContributionsWe expect to contribute approximately $34.7 million to our pension and other postretirement

benefit plans in 2009 The pension contributions will be primarily for the U.K and Norway qualified pension

plans Additionally the expected contribution amount includes the funding for projected lump sum payouts in

our non-qualified pension plans All of the contributions are expected to be in the form of cash In 2008 and

2007 we contributed $91.7 million and $43.2 million to the pension plans respectively which included $61.8

million and $15.0 million respectively to the U.S qualified pension plan
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Estimated flaure benefit paymentsThe following table summarizes expected benefit payments from our various

pension and postretirement benefit plans through 2017 Actual benefit payments may differ from expected

benefit payments

Other

postretirement

In millions Pensions benefits

2009 37.3 $0.7

2010 21.2 0.8

2011 26.5 0.9

2012 33.0 0.9

2013 31.1 1.0

2014-2018 173.8 5.1

Savings PlansThe FMC Technologies Inc Savings and Investment Plan qualified salary reduction plan

under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code is defined contribution plan Additionally we have

non-qualified deferred compensation plan the FMC Technologies Inc Non-Qualified Savings and Investment

Plan Non-Qualified Plan which allows certain highly compensated employees the option to defer the receipt

of portion of their salary We match portion of the participants deferrals to both plans

Participants in the Non-Qualified Plan earn return based on hypothetical investments in the same options as our

401k plan including FMC Technologies stock Changes in the market value of these participant investments

are reflected as an adjustment to the deferred compensation liability with an offset to other income expense

net As of December 31 2008 and 2007 our liability for the Non-Qualified Plan was $20.5 million and $38.0

million respectively and was recorded in other non-current liabilities We hedge the financial impact of changes

in the participants hypothetical investments by purchasing the investments that the participants have chosen

With the exception of FMC Technologies stock which is maintained at its cost basis changes in the fair value of

these investments are recognized as an offset to other income expense net As of December 31 2008 and 2007

we had investments for the Non-Qualified Plan totaling $17.6 million and $28.3 million respectively at fair

market value and FMC Technologies stock held in trust of $6.3 million and $5.4 million respectively at its cost

basis

We recognized expense
of $10.6 million $9.6 million and $8.3 million for matching contributions to these plans

in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

NOTE 12 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We
sponsor stock-based compensation plan which is described below and have granted awards primarily in

the form of nonvested stock awards also known as restricted stock in the plan document and stock options The

compensation expense for awards under the plan for each of the years in the three year period ended

December 31 2008 is as follows

2008 2007 2006

In millions

Stock-based compensation expense

Restricted stock $26.2 $19.4 $14.1

Stock options 1.2

Other L8 L7 L2

Total stock-based compensation expense $28.0 $21.1 $16.5

Income tax benefits related to stock-based compensation expense $10.4 $7.8 $6.4
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Stock-based compensation expense is recognized over the lesser of the stated vesting period three or four years

or the period until the employee reaches age 62 the retirement eligible age under the plan As of December 31

2008 portion of the stock-based compensation expense related to outstanding awards remains to be recognized

in future periods The compensation expense related to nonvested awards yet to be recognized totaled $22.8

million for restricted stock These costs are expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 1.2

years

Incentive compensation and stock planThe Amended and Restated FMC Technologies Inc Incentive

Compensation and Stock Plan the Plan provides certain incentives and awards to officers employees

directors and consultants of FMC Technologies or its affiliates The Plan allows our Board of Directors the

Board to make various types of awards to non-employee directors and the Compensation Committee the

Committee of the Board to make various types of awards to other eligible individuals Awards include

management incentive awards common stock stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock and stock

units All awards are subject to the Plans provisions

Under the Plan 24.0 million shares of our common stock were authorized for awards These shares are in

addition to shares previously granted by FMC Corporation and converted into approximately 9.0 million shares

of our common stock As of December 31 2008 3.6 million shares are reserved to satisfy existing awards and

12.2 million shares are available for future awards

Management incentive awards may be awards of cash common stock options restricted stock or combination

thereof Grants of common stock options may be incentive andlor nonqualified stock options Under the plan the

exercise price for options cannot be less than the market value of our common stock at the date of grant Options

vest in accordance with the terms of the award as determined by the Committee which is generally after three

years of service and expire not later than 10 years after the grant date Restricted stock grants specify any

applicable performance goals the time and rate of vesting and such other provisions as determined by the

Committee Restricted stock grants generally vest after three to four
years

of service Additionally most awards

vest immediately upon change of control as defined in the Plan agreement

Stock-based compensation awards to non-employee directors consist of stock units restricted stock and common

stock options Awards to non-employee directors generally vest on the date of our annual stockholder meeting

following the date of grant Stock options are not exercisable and restricted stock and stock units are not issued

until director ceases services to the Board At December 31 2008 outstanding awards to active and retired

non-employee directors included 11 thousand vested stock options and 436 thousand stock units

61



FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Restricted stock

summary of the nonvested restricted stock awards as of December 31 2008 and changes during the year is

h.1.-...
pIL.LLIL...U UtILJ WV

Weighted-

average

Number of restricted stock shares in thousands Shares grant date fair value

Nonvested at December 31 2007 3302 $23.19

Granted 527 $51.01

Vested 1143 $15.74

Forfeited 15 $30.77

Cancelled 177 $30.51

Nonvested at December 31 2008 2494 $31.92

At the time of the spin-off of JBT all outstanding restricted stock shares awarded in 2007 and held by

employees of JBT were cancelled

Awards granted prior to July 31 2008 have been adjusted to reflect the impact of the dividend of JBT

common stock

In 2008 we granted time-based restricted stock awards as well as awards with performance and market

conditions The vesting period for these awards is three years from the grant date

For current year performance-based awards the payout was dependent upon our performance relative to peer

group of companies with respect to EBITDA growth and return on investment for the year ending December 31

2008 Based on results for the performance period the payout will be 186 thousand shares at the vesting date in

January 2011 Compensation cost has been measured for 2008 based on the actual outcome of the performance

conditions

For current year market-based awards the payout was contingent upon our performance relative to the same peer

group
of companies with respect to total shareholder return for the year ending December 31 2008 Based on

results for the performance period the payout will be 93 thousand shares at the vesting date in January 2011

Compensation cost for these awards has been calculated using the grant date fair market value as estimated using

Monte Carlo simulation

The following summarizes values for restricted stock activity in each of the years
in the three

year period ended

December 31 2008

2008 2007 2006

Weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted $51.01 $31.44 $23.13

Fair value of restricted stock vested in millions 62.9 33.4 18.3

On January 2009 restricted stock awards vested and approximately 931 thousand shares were issued to

employees
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Stock options

There were no options granted forfeited or expired during the
year

ended December 31 2008

The following shows stock option activity for the year ended December 31 2008

Weighted-

Weighted- average

Shares average remaining Aggregate

under exercise contractual Intrinsic

Number of stock options in thousands intrinsic value in millions option price term Value

Outstanding at December 31 2007 1362 9.92

Exercised 497 9.56

Cancelled 51 9.98

Outstanding and exercisable at December 31 2008 814 $10.14 4.1 $1 1.1

At the time of the spin-off of JBT all outstanding stock options to purchase our common stock and held by

employees of JBT were cancelled

Awards granted prior to July 31 2008 have been adjusted to reflect the impact of the dividend of JBT

common stock

The aggregate intrinsic value reflects the value to the option holders or the difference between the market price

as of December 31 2008 and the exercise price of the option which would have been received by the option

holders had all options been exercised as of that date While the intrinsic value is representative of the value to be

gained by the option holders this value is not indicative of compensation expense recorded by us Compensation

expense on stock options was calculated on the date of grant using the fair value of the options as determined by

Black-Scholes option pricing model and the number of options granted reduced by estimated forfeitures

The intrinsic value of options exercised for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31 2008

was $26.9 million $59.5 million and $51.0 million respectively

APIC pool

In November 2005 the FASB issued Staff Position FAS 123R-3 Transition Election Related to Accounting for

the Tax Effects of Share Based Payment Awards which allowed one-time election to adopt one of two

acceptable methodologies for calculating the initial additional paid in capital APIC pool During the third

quarter of 2006 we elected to adopt the transition guidance for the APIC pool in paragraph 81 of SFAS

No 123R The APIC pool reflects the excess tax benefits generated upon stock option exercise or restricted stock

issuance when our allowable income tax deduction for the award exceeds the compensation expense recorded for

book purposes Subsequent to adoption the APIC pool will be increased by tax benefits from stock-based

compensation and decreased by tax losses caused when the recorded stock-based compensation for book

purposes exceeds the allowable income tax deduction As of December 31 2008 our APIC pool totaled $71.7

million
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NOTE 13 STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Capital stockThe following is summary of our capital stock activity during each of the years
in the three-year

period ended December 2008

Common stock Common
Common held in employee stock held in

Number of shares in thousands stock issued benefit trust treasury

December 31 2005 140012 256 3502

Stock awards 2736 548
Treasury stock purchases 5038

Net stock sold from employee benefit trust 30

December 2006 142748 226 7992

Stock awards 2204
Treasury stock purchases 7882

Net stock sold from employee benefit trust 56

December3l2007 143159 170 13670

Stock awards 1254
Treasury stock purchases 5703

Net stock sold from employee benefit trust 48

December3l2008 143159 122 18119

The plan administrator of the Non-Qualified Plan purchases shares of our common stock on the open market

Such shares are placed in trust owned by FMC Technologies

In February 2005 we announced plans to begin repurchasing shares subject to our four million share

authorization by the Board of Directors In February 2006 the Board of Directors approved the repurchase of an

additional 10 million shares of our issued and outstanding common stock In the year
ended December 31 2006

we repurchased 5.0 million shares for $142.5 million In February 2007 the Board of Directors approved the

repurchase of an additional 16 million shares of our issued and outstanding common stock There were

7.9 million shares repurchased for $287.4 million in the year ended December 31 2007 In July 2008 the Board

of Directors authorized the repurchase of $95.0 million of our issued and outstanding common stock in addition

to our prior authorization to repurchase up to 30 million shares We completed the share repurchases under the

$95.0 million program during the third quarter of 2008 There were 5.7 million shares repurchased for $324.0

million in the year ended December 31 2008 We intend to hold repurchased shares in treasury for general

corporate purposes including issuances under our employee stock plans The treasury shares are accounted for

using the cost method

No cash dividends were paid on our common stock in 2008 2007 or 2006

On June 2001 our Board of Directors declared dividend distribution to each recordholder of common stock

of one Preferred Share Purchase Right for each share of common stock outstanding at that date Each right

entitles the holder to purchase under certain circumstances related to change in control of FMC Technologies

one one-hundredth of share of Series junior participating preferred stock without par value at price of $95

per share subject to adjustment subject to the terms and conditions of Rights Agreement dated June 200
The rights expire on June 201 unless redeemed by us at an earlier date The redemption price of $0.01 per

right is subject to adjustment to reflect stock splits stock dividends or similar transactions We have reserved

800000 shares of Series junior participating preferred stock for possible issuance under the agreement
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Accumulated other comprehensive income lossAccumulated other comprehensive income loss consisted of

the following

December 31

In millions
2008 2007

Cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustments $132.9 3.8

Cumulative deferral of hedging gains losses net of tax of $48.4 million and $16.4 million

respectively 84.9 25.3

Cumulative deferral of pension and other postretirement benefit losses net of tax of $97.6

million and $34.9 million respectively 188.7 76.3

Cumulative unrealized losses on investments net of tax of $0.8 million at December 31

2008 1.9

Accumulated other comprehensive loss $408.4 $47.2

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31 2008 was reduced by $2.4 million of cumulative foreign

currency translation adjustments and $25.5 million of pension and other postretirement benefit losses distributed

to JBT as result of the spin-off on July 31 2008

NOTE 14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Derivative financial instrumentsWe hold derivative financial instruments for the purpose of hedging the risks

of certain identifiable and anticipated transactions In general the types of risks hedged are those relating to the

variability of future earnings and cash flows caused by movements in foreign currency exchange rates and

interest rates We hold the following types of derivative instruments

Foreign exchange rate forward contractsThe purpose of this instrument is to hedge the risk of changes in future

cash flows of anticipated purchase or sale commitments denominated in foreign currencies

Foreign exchange rate instruments embedded in purchase and sale contractsThe purpose of this instrument is

to match offsetting currency payments for particular projects or comply with government restrictions on the

currency used to purchase goods in certain countries

We manufacture and sell our products in number of countries throughout the world and as result are exposed

to movements in foreign currency exchange rates Our major foreign currency exposures
involve the markets in

Western and Eastern Europe South America Asia and Canada The purpose of our foreign currency hedging

activities is to manage the volatility associated with anticipated foreign currency purchases and sales created in

the normal course of business We primarily utilize forward exchange contracts with maturities of less than three

years

Our policy is to hold derivatives only for the purpose of hedging risks and not for trading purposes
where the

objective is solely to generate profit Generally we enter into hedging relationships such that changes in the fair

values or cash flows of items and transactions being hedged are expected to be offset by corresponding changes

in the fair value of the derivatives
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The following table of all outstanding derivative instruments is based on estimated fair value amounts that have

been determined using available market information and commonly accepted valuation methodologies

Accordingly the estimates presented may not be indicative of potential gains or losses on these agreements

December 31 December 31

2008 2007

Short Long Short Long
In millions Term Term Term Term

Assets $354.6 $142.4 $154.5 $105.4

Liabilities $444.4 $175.8 $106.9 69.5

Hedge ineffectiveness and the portion of cash flow hedges excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness

were gains of $7.0 million and $3.1 million and loss of $1.9 million for the years ended December 31 2008
2007 and 2006 respectively Gains and losses are recorded in revenue and cost of sales based on the transaction

hedged on the consolidated statements of income Revenue recorded from gains and losses are reported in other

revenue in the reconciliation of segment operating profit to income before income taxes

Discontinued hedging relationships resulted in loss of $19.6 million and gains of $7.8 million and $3.3 million

for the
years ending December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively These gains and loses are recorded in cost

of sales on the consolidated statements of income and in segment operating profit in the reconciliation of

segment operating profit to income before income taxes

Cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions net of tax resulted in accumulated other comprehensive loss of

$84.9 million and accumulated other comprehensive income of $25.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively We expect to transfer approximately $59.8 million of that amount to earnings during 2009 when the

forecasted offsetting hedged transactions actually occur All forecasted transactions currently being hedged are

expected to occur by 2012

At times we enter into derivative contracts such as forwards options or collars to create hedge against

exchange rate exposure for foreign currency movements The exposures include assets and liabilities included on

our balance sheet denominated in
currency other than the reporting units functional currency embedded

derivatives and fixed contracts bid in foreign currency These derivatives do not qualify as nor are they

designated as hedges and therefore gains or losses for the period are recognized in earnings immediately The

gains and losses net of remeasurernent of assets and liabilities recorded in earnings for instruments not

designated as hedging instruments were loss of $15.8 million gain of $27.9 million and loss of $7.1 million

for the years ending December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively These gains and losses are recorded in

other income expense net on the consolidated statements of income and in other expense net in the

reconciliation of segment operating profit to income before income taxes

Fair value disclosuresThe carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents trade receivables accounts payable

short-term debt commercial paper and debt associated with revolving credit facilities as well as amounts

included in other current assets and other current liabilities that meet the definition of financial instruments

approximate fair value because of their short-term maturities Investments and derivative financial instruments

are carried at fair value determined using available market information See Note 15 for fair value disclosure of

investments and derivative financial instruments

Credit riskBy their nature financial instruments involve risk including credit risk for non-performance by

counterparties Financial instruments that potentially subject us to credit risk primarily consist of trade
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receivables and derivative contracts We manage the credit risk on financial instruments by transacting only with

financially secure counterparties requiring credit approvals and credit limits and monitoring counterparties

financial condition Our maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparty is

limited to the amount drawn and outstanding on the financial instrument Allowances for losses are established

based on collectability assessments See Note 15 for additional discussion of credit nsk as it relates to derivative

contracts

NOTE 15 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements which defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS

157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 which provides one year deferral of the effective date of

SFAS No 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities except for items that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually We adopted SFAS

No 157 on January 2008 with respect to financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

within the consolidated financial statements and deferred the adoption for non-financial assets and non-financial

liabilities until January 2009 Accordingly the provisions of SEAS No 157 were not applied to long-lived

assets assets and liabilities held for sale goodwill and other intangible assets measured for impairment testing

purposes

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilitiesincluding an amendment of SFAS No 115 SFAS No 159 permits entities to measure eligible

assets and liabilities at fair value Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been

elected are reported in earnings SFAS No 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007

We adopted SEAS No 159 on January 2008 and did no elect to apply the fair value method to any eligible

assets or liabilities at that time

The fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the

assumptions inputs used to price the assets or liabilities Level provides the most reliable measure of fair

value whereas Level generally requires significant management judgment The three levels are defined as

follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than those included in Level For example quoted prices for similar

assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets

Level Unobservable inputs reflecting managements own assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the

asset or liability

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are as follows

In millions Dec 31 2008 Level Level Level

Assets

Investments 35.1 $35.1

Derivatives 497.0 497.0

Total assets $532.1 $35.1 $497.0

Liabilities

Derivatives $620.2 $620.2
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Fair value measurements for assets or liabilities are valued based on quoted prices in public markets that we have

the ability to access We use the income approach as the valuation technique to measure the fair value of foreign

currency derivative instruments on recurring basis This approach calculates the present value of the future cash

flow by measuring the change from the derivative contract rate and the published market indicative currency rate

multiplied by the contract notional values Credit risk is then incorporated by adjusting the derivative asset value

by the amount calculated by multiplying the present value of the portfolio by the counterpartys published credit

spread Portfolios in liability position are adjusted by the same calculation however spread representing our

credit spread is used Our credit spread and the credit spread of other counterparties not publicly available are

approximated by using the spread of similarcompanies in the same industry with the same credit rating and of

similarsize The derivative asset values presented in the preceding table were reduced by 51 .2 million and the

derivative liability values reduced by $5.0 million to approximate fair value including credit risk

NOTE 16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Bean Technologies CorporationOn July 12 2008 our Board of Directors approved the spin-off of 100%

of our FoodTech and Airport Systems businesses to our shareholders The spin-off was accomplished on July 31
2008 through tax-free dividend of all outstanding shares of JBT which is now an independent public company
traded on the New York Stock Exchange symbol JBT

We entered into certain agreements which defined key provisions related to the spin-off and the relationship

between the two companies after the spin-off including among others separation and distribution agreement

between FMC Technologies and JBT the Separation and Distribution Agreement and tax sharing agreement

between FMC Technologies and JBT the Tax Sharing Agreement The Separation and Distribution

Agreement required us to contribute certain business segments and their associated assets and liabilities to JBT
As result of the contribution we have no interest in JBTs assets and business and subject to certain exceptions

described below generally have no obligation with respect to JBTs liabilities Similarly JBT has no interest in

our assets and generally has no obligation with respect to our liabilities related to retained businesses after the

distribution We generally made no representations or warranties as to the assets businesses or liabilities

transferred or assumed as part of the contribution and generally made the transfers on an as is where is basis

JBT agreed to cause us to be released from all FMC Technologies obligations to guarantee or otherwise support

any liabilities or obligations of JBT not later than July 31 2010 JBT agreed to reimburse and otherwise

indemnify and hold us harmless for the full amount of all payments made or products or services delivered to

third parties under
any guarantee not terminated prior to July 31 2008

The Tax Sharing Agreement sets forth the responsibilities of the parties with respect to among other things

liabilities for federal state local and foreign taxes for periods before and including the spin-off the preparation

and filing of tax returns for such periods and disputes with taxing authorities regarding taxes for such periods

The Tax Sharing Agreement also provides that JBT will indemnify us for
any tax liability we may incur as

result of
any action taken by JBT after the spin-off which causes the distribution to not qualify as tax-free for

U.S federal income tax purposes under the terms of the private letter ruling received from the IRS We will

indemnify JBT against any tax liability in the case any action taken by us causes the distribution to not qualify as

tax-free

FMC CorporationFMC Technologies was subsidiary of FMC Corporation until the distribution of FMC
Technologies common stock by FMC Corporation which was completed on December 31 2001

In June 2001 FMC Corporation contributed to us substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the businesses

that comprise FMC Technologies the Separation FMC Technologies and FMC Corporation entered into
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certain agreements which defined key provisions related to the Separation and the ongoing relationship between

the two companies after the Separation These agreements included Separation and Distribution Agreement

SDA and Tax Sharing Agreement which provided that FMC Technologies and FMC Corporation would

make payments between them as appropriate to properly allocate tax liabilities for pre-Separation periods

As parties to the SDA FMC Corporation and FMC Technologies each indemnify the other party from liabilities

arising from their respective businesses or contracts from liabilities arising from breach of the SDA from certain

claims made prior to our spin-off from FMC Corporation and for claims related to discontinued operations

Note 18

CDS PeledimiaThe consideration provided in 2007 for the acquisition of the CDS minority interest Note

included note payable for 6.8 million Euros or $9.9 million The payee was owned by member of CDS

management and thus was considered related party The note was payable in two installments scheduled for

2009 and 2011 The member of CDS management voluntarily terminated employment during 2008 and no

further consideration related to continued employment is required

NOTE 17 WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

We provide warranties of various lengths and terms to certain of our customers based on standard terms and

conditions and negotiated agreements We provide for the estimated cost of warranties at the time revenue is

recognized for products where reliable historical experience of warranty claims and costs exists We also

provide warranty liability when additional specific obligations are identified The obligation reflected in other

current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets is based on historical experience by product and considers

failure rates and the related costs in correcting product failure Warranty cost and accrual information is as

follows

In millions 2008 2007

Balance at beginning of year
12.4 $1 1.1

Expenses for new warranties 18.3 16.0

Adjustments to existing accruals 6.9 2.5

Claims paid 10.3 12.2

Balance at end of year
13.5 12.4

NOTE 18 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

CommitmentsWe lease office space manufacturing facilities and various types of manufacturing and data

processing equipment Leases of real estate generally provide for payment of property taxes insurance and

repairs by us Substantially all leases are classified as operating leases for accounting purposes Rent expense

under operating leases amounted to $72.6 million $59.8 million and $46.8 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Minimum future rental payments under noncancelable operating leases amounted to $239.6 million as of

December 31 2008 and are payable as follows $37.0 million in 2009 $32.8 million in 2010 $28.3 million in

2011 $22.7 million in 2012 $20.1 million in 2013 and $98.7 million thereafter Minimum future rental payments

to be received under noncancelable subleases totaled $6.6 million at December 31 2008

Contingent liabilities associated with guaranteesIn the ordinary course of business with customers vendors

and others we issue standby letters of credit performance bonds surety bonds and other guarantees These
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financial instruments which totaled $755.7 million at December 31 2008 represented guarantees of our future

performance We also have provided $27.7 million of bank guarantees and letters of credit to secure portion of

our existing financial obligations The majority of these financial instruments expire within two years we expect

Lu replace them through the issuance of new or the extension of existing letters of credit and surety bonds

We are the named guarantor on certain performance bonds totaling $131.5 million at December 31 2008 issued

by our former subsidiary JBT however we are fully indemnified by JBT pursuant to the terms and conditions of

the Separation and Distribution Agreement dated July 31 2008 between FMC Technologies and JBT

Management does not expect any of these financial instruments to result in losses that if incurred would have

material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

Management believes that the ultimate resolution of our known contingencies will not materially affect our

consolidated financial position or results of operations

Contingent liabilities associated with legal matte rsWe are named defendants in number of multi-defendant

multi-plaintiff tort lawsuits Under the SDA with FMC Corporation which contains key provisions relating to

our 2001 spin-off from FMC Corporation FMC Corporation is required to indemnify us for certain claims made

prior to the spin-off as well as for other claims related to discontinued operations We expect that FMC
Corporation will bear responsibility for the majority of these claims Claims of this nature have also been

asserted subsequent to the spin-off While the ultimate responsibility for all of these claims cannot yet be

determined due to lack of identification of the products or premises involved we also expect that FMC
Corporation will bear responsibility for majority of these claims initiated subsequent to the spin-off

While the results of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty management believes that the most probable

ultimate resolution of these matters will not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position

or results of operations and cash flows

NOTE 19 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Our determination of our reportable segments was made on the basis of our strategic business units and the

commonalities among the products and services within each segment and corresponds to the manner in which

our management reviews and evaluates operating performance We have combined certain similaroperating

segments that meet applicable criteria established under SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an

Enterprise and Related Information

Our reportable segments are

Energy Production Systemsdesigns and manufactures systems and provides services used by oil and gas

companies involved in land and offshore particularly deepwater exploration and production of crude oil

and gas

Energy Processing Systemsdesigns manufactures and supplies technologically advanced high pressure

valves and fittings for oilfield service customers also manufactures and supplies liquid and gas

measurement and transportation equipment and systems to customers involved in the production

transportation and processing of crude oil natural gas and petroleum-based refined products

Total revenue by segment includes intersegment sales which are made at prices approximating those that the

selling entity is able to obtain on external sales Segment operating profit is defined as total segment revenue less

segment operating expenses The following items have been excluded in computing segment operating profit

corporate staff expense net interest income expense associated with corporate debt facilities income taxes and

other expense net
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Segment revenue and segment operating profit

Year Ended December 31

In millions 2008 2007 2006

Revenue

Energy Production Systems $3670.7 $2882.2 $2249.5

Energy Processing Systems 883.2 767.7 672.3

Other revenue and intercompany eliminations 3.0 1.0 6.4

Total revenue $4550.9 $3648.9 $2915.4

Income before income taxes

Segment operating profit

Energy Production Systems 420.7 287.9 191.2

Energy Processing Systems 165.5 142.5 100.9

Total segment operating profit
586.2 430.4 292.1

Corporate items

Corporate expense 37.5 35.1 32.9

Other revenue and other expense net 42.3 9.1 27.3

Net interest expense 1.5 9.3 6.7

Total corporate items 81.3 35.3 66.9

Income before income taxes 504.9 395.1 225.2

Provision for income taxes 152.0 134.5 62.7

Income from continuing operations 352.9 260.6 162.5

Income from discontinued operations net of tax 8.4 42.2 113.8

Net income 361.3 302.8 276.3

We have one customer in our Energy Production Systems segment that comprises approximately 19% and

10% of our consolidated revenue for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively No

customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenue in the year ended December 31 2006

Other revenue comprises certain unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments related to unexecuted

sales contracts

Corporate expense primarily includes corporate
staff expenses

Other expense net generally includes stock-based compensation other employee benefits LIFO

adjustments certain foreign exchange gains and losses and the impact of unusual or strategic transactions

not representative of segment operations
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Segment operating capital employed and segment assets

December 31

In millions 2008 2007

Segment operating capital employed

Energy Production Systems 917.2 676.9

Energy Processing Systems 243.0 243.7

Intercompany eliminations 0.1
________

Total segment operating capital employed 1160.1 920.6

Segment liabilities included in total segment operating capital employed 1493.7 1303.8

Corporate 932.5 452.9

Assets of discontinued operations 533.8

Total assets $3586.3 $3211.1

Segment assets

Energy Production Systems $2242.1 $1834.4

Energy Processing Systems 413.7 392.6

Intercompany eliminations 2.0 2.6

Total segment assets 2653.8 2224.4

Corporate 932.5 452.9

Assets of discontinued operations 533.8

Total assets $3586.3 $3211.1

FMC Technologies management views segment operating capital employed which consists of assets net

of its liabilities as the primary measure of segment capital Segment operating capital employed excludes

debt pension liabilities income taxes and LIFO inventory reserves

Segment liabilities included in total segment operating capital employed consist of trade and other accounts

payable advance payments and progress billings accrued payroll and other liabilities

Corporate includes cash LIFO inventory reserves deferred income tax balances property plant and

equipment not associated with specific segment pension assets and the fair value of derivatives
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Geographic segment information

Geographic segment sales were identified based on the location where our products and services were delivered

Geographic segment long-lived assets include property plant and equipment net goodwill intangible assets

net and certain other non-current assets

Year Ended December 31

In millions
2008 2007 2006

Revenue by location of customer

United States $1110.1 908.5 756.5

Norway 1068.1 739.2 427.1

All other countries 2372.7 2001.2 1731.8

Total revenue $4550.9 $3648.9 $2915.4

December 31

In millions
2008 2007 2006

Long-lived assets

United States 224.3 172.0 160.2

Norway 126.1 139.2 57.2

Brazil 90.7 105.4 75.8

Netherlands 126.2 121.6 56.3

All other countries 158.1 177.5 145.7

Total long-lived assets 725.4 715.7 495.2

Other business segment information

Depreciation and Research and

Capital expenditures amortization development expense

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31

In millions 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Energy Production Systems $153.7 $162.1 94.8 $60.7 $49.4 $36.3 $38.4 $34.9 $26.9

Energy Processing Systems 7.2 12.4 16.2 9.6 10.0 8.3 6.9 5.9 6.1

Corporate 4.1 5.1 4.6 2.3 2.4 3.3

Total $165.0 $179.6 $115.6 $72.6 $61.8 $47.9 $45.3 $40.8 $33.0
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NOTE 20 QUARTERLY INFORMATION UNAUDITED

In millions except per share

data and common stock prices

Revenue

Cost of sales

Income from continuing

operations

Income loss from

discontinued

operations

Net income

Basic earnings per

share

Diluted earnings per

sharel

Common stock price

High

Low

Basic and diluted EPS are computed independently for each of the periods presented Accordingly the sum

of the quarterly EPS amounts may not agree to the annual total

NOTE 21 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 13 2009 we entered into $350 million 364-day revolving credit agreement maturing in January

2010 with Bank of America NA as Administrative Agent Borrowings under the credit agreement accrue

interest at rate equal to at our option either base rate determined by reference to the higher of the

agents prime rate the federal funds rate plus 1/2 of 1% or the London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR
plus 1.00% or LIBOR plus 2.25% The margin over LIBOR is variable and is determined based on our debt

rating Among other restrictions the terms of the credit agreement include negative covenants related to liens and

financial covenant related to the debt to earnings ratio We now have combined committed bank lines of $950

million including $600 million five-year revolving credit facility that matures in December 2012

2008 2007

4th Qtr 3rd Qtr 2nd Qtr 1st Qtr 4th Qtr 3rd Qtr 2nd Qtr 1st Qtr

$1205.1 $1127.6 $1178.1 $1040.1 $1070.5 $879.4 $911.4 $787.6

958.4 888.2 934.3 842.2 858.5 704.5 733.6 625.3

93.9 92.4 98.2 68.4 84.2 65.3 59.7 51.4

2.6 9.7 7.6 13.1 5.7 13.4 13.2 9.9

91.3 82.7 105.8 81.5 89.9 78.7 72.9 61.3

0.73 0.65 0.82 0.63 0.69 0.60 0.56 0.46

0.72 0.64 0.81 0.62 0.68 0.59 0.55 0.45

44.88 77.98 80.86 64.88 66.86 $58.48 $39.62 $35.34

20.34 43.10 57.83 46.1 54.12 $40.83 $34.63 $27.76
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the direction of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer we have evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2008 We have concluded that our

disclosure controls and procedures were

effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed is recorded processed summarized and

reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms and

ii effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to

management including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer as appropriate to

allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5f Our internal control over financial reporting

is process designed under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our financial

statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Under the

supervision and with the participation of our management including our principal executive officer and principal

financial officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

based on the framework in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control

Inte grated Framework our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was

effective in providing this reasonable assurance as of December 31 2008 During the quarter ended

December 31 2008 there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially

affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 has been audited

by KPMG LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included

herein
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of FMC Technologies Inc

We have audited FMC Technologies Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008
based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO FMC Technologies Inc.s management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Annual Report on Internal

Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the FMC Technologies Inc.s

internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion FMC Technologies Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of FMC Technologies Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31
2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations cash flows and changes in stockholders

equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated February 27
2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements

Is KPMG LLP

Houston Texas

February 27 2009
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ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding our directors is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled Board of

Directors of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Our Board of Directors has

three standing committees an Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance

Committee Each of these committees operates pursuant to written charter setting out the functions and

responsibilities of the committee The charters for the Audit Committee the Compensation Committee and the

Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board of Directors may be found on our website at

www.fmctechnologies.com under Corporate OverviewCorporate Governance and are also available in print

to any
stockholder upon request without charge by submitting written request to Jeffrey Can Vice

President General Counsel and Secretary FMC Technologies Inc 1803 Gears Road Houston Texas 77067

Information concerning audit committee financial experts on the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is

incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled Committees of the Board of DirectorsAudit

Committee of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Information regarding our executive officers is presented in the section entitled Executive Officers of the

Registrant in Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Information regarding compliance by our directors and executive officers with Section 16a of the

Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders

We have adopted code of ethics which includes provisions that apply to our principal executive officer

principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller and other key professionals serving in

finance accounting treasury tax or investor relations role copy of our code of ethics may be found on our

website at www.fmctechnologies.com under Corporate OverviewCorporate Governance and is available in

print to stockholders without charge by submitting request to the address set forth above

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the sections entitled Director

Compensation Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in Compensation Decisions and

Executive Compensation of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled Security

Ownership of FMC Technologies of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Additionally Equity Plan Compensation Information is presented in Item of Part II of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the sections entitled

Transactions with Related Persons and Director Independence of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders
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ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the section entitled Relationship

with Independent Public Accountants of the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this Report

Financial Statements and Related Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule and related Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm

See Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts and the related Report of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm included herein All other schedules are omitted because of

the absence of conditions under which they are required or because information called for is

shown in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in Item of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K

Exhibits

See Index of Exhibits beginning on page 83 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of FMC Technologies Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of FMC Technologies Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income cash flows

and changes in stockholders equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 In

connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we also have audited financial statement

schedule II These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements

and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule II

when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all

material respects the information set forth therein

As described in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements effective December 31 2006 the Company

adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit

Pension and Other Postretirement Plansan Amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and l32R which

changed the method of accounting for pension and postretirement benefits

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on

criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Houston Texas

February 27 2009
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Schedule 11Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

In thousands
Additions

Balance at charged to costs charged to Deductions Balance at

Description beginning of period and expenses other accounts and other end of period

Year ended December 31 2006

Allowance for doubtful

accounts 3473 417 80 394 $3576

Valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets $13551 655 959 $12912 $2253

Year ended December 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful

accounts 3576 387 507 1644 $2826

Valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets 2253 733 58 575 $2469

Year ended December 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful

accounts 2826 $6268 $1994 $2287 $9387

Valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets 2469 922 86 1339 $1966

aAdditions charged to other accounts includes translation adjustments and allowances acquired through

business combinations

bDeductions and other includes write-offs net of recoveries and reductions in the allowances credited to

expense

See accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

FMC TECHNOLOGIES INC

Registrant

By
WILLIAM SCHUMANN III

William Schumann Ill

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Date February 27 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Date Signature

February 27 2009 Is PETER KINNEAR

Peter Kinnear

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

February 27 2009 Is WILLIAM SCHUMANN III

William Schumann III

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

February 27 2009 Is JAY NUrr

Jay Nutt

Corporate Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

February 27 2009 Is MIKE BOWLIN

Mike Bowlin

Director

February 27 2009 Is PHILIP BURGUIERES

Philip Burguieres

Director

February 27 2009 Is MAURY DEVINE

Maury Devine

Director

February 27 2009 sI THOMAS HAMILTON

Thomas Hamilton

Director

February 27 2009 sI ASBJRN LARSEN

Asbjrn Larsen

Director

February 27 2009 Is EDWARD MOONEY

Edward Mooney
Director
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Date Signature

February 27 2009 Is JOSEPH NETHERLAND

Joseph Netherland

Director

February 27 2009 1sf RICHARD PArrARozzi

Richard Pattarozzi

Director

February 27 2009 /s JAMES RINGLER

James Ringler

Director

February 27 2009 Is JAMES THOMPSON

James Thompson

Director
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit

No Exhibit Description

2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement by and between FMC Corporation and the Company dated as

of May 31 2001 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the Form S-i/A filed on June

2001

2.2 Separation and Distribution Agreement by and between FMC Technologies and John Bean

Technologies Corporation dated July 31 2008 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the

Form 8-K filed on August 2008

3.1 Registrants Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 3.1 to the Form S-i/A filed on April 2001

3.2 Registrants Amended and Restated Bylaws incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 the

Form S-I/A filed on April 2001

4.1 Form of Specimen Certificate for the Companys Common Stock incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 4.1 to the Form S-i/A filed on May 2001

4.2 Preferred Share Purchase Rights Agreement incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the

Form S-8 filed on June 14 2001

10.1 Tax Sharing Agreement by and among FMC Corporation and the Company dated as of May 31 2001

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Form S-I/A filed on June 2001

10.2 Employee Benefits Agreement by and between FMC Corporation and the Company dated as of

May 30 2001 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Form S-i/A filed on June 2001

10.3 Transition Services Agreement between FMC Corporation and the Company dated as of May 31

2001 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Form S-i/A filed on June 2001

10.4 Amended and Restated Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan dated February 25 2008

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4p to the Form 8-K filed on February 29 2008

iO.4.a Form of Grant Agreement for Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC

Technologies Inc Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan Employee incorporated by reference

from 10.4d to the Quarterly Report on Form iO-Q filed on May 10 2005

10.4.b Form of Grant Agreement for Long Term Incentive Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC

Technologies Inc Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan Non-Employee Director incorporated

by reference from 10.4e to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed on May 10 2005

10.4.c Form of Grant Agreement for Key Manager Restricted Stock Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies

Inc Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan incorporated by reference from 10.4f to the Quarterly

Report on Form iO-Q filed on May 10 2005

l0.4.d Form of Grant Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies Inc

Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan Employee incorporated by reference from 0.4g to the

Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q filed on May 10 2005

10.4.e Form of Grant Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies Inc

Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan Non-Employee Director incorporated by reference from

l0.4h to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 10 2005

10.4.f Form of Grant Agreement for Stock Appreciation Rights Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies Inc

Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan incorporated by reference from 10.4i to the Quarterly Report

on Form i0-Q filed on May 10 2005
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Exhibit

No Exhibit Description

0.4.g Form of Grant Agreement for Performance Units Grant Pursuant to FMC Technologies Inc Incentive

Compensation and Stock Plan incorporated by reference from 10.4j to the Quarterly Report on Form

l0-Q filed on May 10 2005

0.4.h Form of Long Term Incentive Performance Share Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the FMC

Technologies Inc incentive Compensation and Stock Plan incorporated by reference from 10.4k to

the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 2006

0.4.i Form of Long Term Incentive Performance Share Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the FMC

Technologies Inc Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan

10.5 Forms of Executive Severance Agreements

l0.7.a FMC Technologies Inc Salaried Employees Equivalent Retirement Plan incorporated by reference

from Exhibit lO.7.a to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed on November 14 2001

l0.7.b FMC Technologies Inc Equivalent Retirement Plan Grantor Trust Agreement incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.7.b to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed on November 14 2001

10.7.c First Amendment to the FMC Technologies Inc Salaried Employees Equivalent Retirement Plan

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7.c to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on

March 25 2003

10.8.a FMC Technologies Inc Savings and Investment Plan incorporated by reference from Exhibit lO.8.a

to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed on November 14 2001

10.8.b FMC Technologies Inc Savings and Investment Plan Trust incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.8.b to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14 2001

10.8.c First Amendment to the FMC Technologies Inc Savings and Investment Plan incorporated by

reference from Exhibit l0.8.c to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 25 2003

lO.8.d Second Amendment to the FMC Technologies Inc Savings and Investment Plan incorporated by

reference from Exhibit lO.8.d to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 25 2003

10.8.e Third Amendment of the FMC Technologies Inc Savings and Investment Plan incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.8.e to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 12 2003

lO.9.a FMC Technologies Inc Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.9.a to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14 2001

10.9.b FMC Technologies Inc Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust Agreement incorporated

by reference from Exhibit l0.9.b to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14 2001

lO.9.c First Amendment to the FMC Technologies Inc Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan

incorporated by reference from Exhibit lO.9.c to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on

March 25 2003

10.10 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement 42 Program between Banc of America Securities LLC and the

Company dated as of January 24 2003 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to the Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed on March 25 2003

10.11 Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement between Wells Fargo Bank National Association and the

Company dated as of January 2004 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.12 to the Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed on March 12 2004
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Exhibit

No Exhibit Description

10.12 $600000000 Five-Year Credit Agreement dated December 2007 between FMC Technologies

Inc and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.15 to the Form 8-K filed on December 2007

10.13 $350000000 364-Day Credit Agreement dated January 13 2009 between FMC Technologies Inc

and Bank of America LP as Administrative Agent incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.13 to

the Form 8-K filed on January 19 2009

10.14 Tax Sharing Agreement between FMC Technologies Inc and John Bean Technologies Corporation

dated July 31 2008 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on August

2008

10.15 Securities Purchase Agreement among FMC Technologies Inc and Schilling Robotics Inc Schilling

Robotics LLC and Tyler Schilling dated December 24 2008

10.16 Unit Holders Agreement among FMC Technologies Inc Schilling Robotics Inc and Tyler

Schilling dated December 26 2008

10.17 Amended and Restated Operating Agreement among FMC Technologies Inc Schilling Robotics

Inc Schilling Robotics Newco LLC Schilling Robotics LLC and Tyler Schilling dated

December 26 2008

14.1 FMC Technologies Inc Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Including Provisions for Principal

Executive and Financial Officers incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.12 to the Annual Report

on Form 10-K filed on March 12 2004

21.1 Significant Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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FMC Technologies Inc copy of the Companys 2008 Annual Report on Form

1803 Gears Road b-K as filed with the U.S Securities and Exchange

Houston TX 77067 Commission is available at www.fmctechnologies.com

281 591 4000 or upon written request to

FMC Technologies Inc

Investor Relations may be contacted at the
Corporate Communications

following address
1803 Gears Road

Houston TX 77067
FMC Technologies Inc

Investor Relations
However certain information required under Parts II

Robert Cherry and III of the Companys 2008 Annual Report on Form

1803 Gears Road
10-K have been incorporated by reference from the

Houston TX 77067
Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual

281 591 4560
Meeting of Shareholders

ir.fmctechnologiescom

Certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002 as amended are attached as

FMC Technologies is listed on the
Exhibits to the Companys 2008 Annual Report on

New York Stock Exchange under the symbol FTI
Form io-K FMC Technologies CEO timely submitted

the CEO Annual Certification required by Section

3o3A.12a of the New York Stock Exchange Listed

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held at

Company Manual in 2008 to the New York
1100 am on Friday May 2009 at

Stock Exchange

The Woodlands Waterway Marriott Hotel
FMC Technologies was

1601 Lake Robbins Drive
incorporated in Delaware in 2000

The Woodlands TX 77380

Notice of the meeting together with proxy

materials will be mailed to stockholders in advance KPMG LLP

of the meeting Houston TX 77067

Address stockholder inquiries including requests for

stock transfers to

National City Bank

Corporate Trust Operations

P.O Box 92301

Cleveland OH 44193-0900

Telephone 800 622 6757

Fax 216 257 8508

Email shareholder.inquiries@nationalcity.com



FMCTechnologies

FMC Technologies Inc

1803 Gears Road

Houston TX 77067

fmctechnologies.com


